
APRIL MAY 
S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

1  1 2 3 4 5 6 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 
30 

4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE #611 | Blaine, MN 55449 | T: 763‐398‐3070 | F: 763‐398‐3088 | www.ricecreek.org 
 
 

BOARD OF 
MANAGERS 

Jess Robertson   Steven P. Wagamon   Michael J. Bradley  Marcie Weinandt  John J. Waller 
Anoka County Anoka County Ramsey County Ramsey County Washington County 

 

RCWD BOARD OF MANAGERS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, April 26, 2023, 9:00 a.m. 

Shoreview City Hall Council Chambers 
4600 North Victoria Street, Shoreview, Minnesota 

or via Zoom Meeting: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89882321662?pwd=YThVdW03ams5cDJ6SitIODYraDRuZz09 

Meeting ID: 898 8232 1662 

Passcode: 332590 

Dial by your location    +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

Meeting ID: 898 8232 1662 

Passcode: 332590 

Agenda 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

SETTING OF THE AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: APRIL 10, 2023 WORKSHOP; APRIL 12, 2023 REGULAR 
MEETING; AND APRIL 17, 2023 SPECIAL WORKSHOP 

CONSENT AGENDA    
The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the staff recommendation 
and associated documentation unless a Manager or another interested person requests opportunity for 
discussion: 

Table of Contents‐Permit Applications Requiring Board Action 
No.  Applicant  Location  Plan Type  Recommendation 
22‐116  City of  Columbia Heights  Final Site Drainage Plan  CAPROC 4 items 

Columbia Heights Street & Utility Plan 

23‐009  City of Lino Lakes  Lino Lakes  Final Site Drainage Plan  CAPROC 3 items 
US Home, LLC (dba Lennar)

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager _____________, to 
approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with 
RCWD District Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, dated April 18, 2023. 

1



Agenda for the Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 26, 2023 Page 2 of 2 

 

Houston Engineering, Inc. Task Orders 

Date  Number  Title  Amount 

4/3/2023  2023‐004  2023 District Wide Modeling Program Annual 
Updates 

$22,500 

4/10/2023  2023‐005  Ramsey County Ditch 1 Historic Review and 
Technical Information for Public Drainage 
Proceedings 

$27,500 

4/19/2023  2023‐006  Permit Program Compliance Audit  $27,500 

 
It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager _____________, to 
approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of Contents. 

PUBLIC MEETING: ANOKA COUNTY DITCH 10‐22‐32 EVALUATION OF 
MAINTENANCE ALTERNATIVES 

OPEN MIC/PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any RCWD resident may address the Board in his or her individual capacity, for up to three minutes, on any matter not on the 
agenda. Speakers are requested to come to the podium, state their name and address for the record.  Additional comments may 
be solicited and accepted in writing.  Generally, the Board of Managers will not take official action on items discussed at this 
time, but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct that the matter be scheduled on an upcoming agenda. 

ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION   
1. Aquatic Plant Survey Services (Matt Kocian) 

2. 2023 Curlyleaf Pondweed Management (Matt Kocian) 

3. Employee Handbook (Nick Tomczik) 

4. Anoka Washington Judicial Ditch 3 Branch 1, 2 ,4 Bid Consideration (Ashlee Ricci) 

5. Check Register Dated April 26, 2023, in the Amount of $318,936.21  Prepared by 
Redpath and Company 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION 
1. Columbus Letter of Request for Wetland Credits Based Upon October 15, 2009 

Memorandum of Understanding (Nick Tomczik)  

2. Staff Reports 

3. May Calendar 

4. Administrator Updates 

5. Manager’s Update 

2



APPROVAL OF MINUTES: APRIL 10, 2023WORKSHOP; APRIL
12, 2023 REGULARMEETING; AND APRIL 17, 2023
SPECIALWORKSHOP

3



Draft

For Consideration of Approval at the April 26, 2023 Board Meeting.
Use these minutes only for reference until that time.

RCWD BOARD OFMANAGERSWORKSHOP
Monday, April 10, 2023

Rice Creek Watershed District Conference Room
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE, Suite 611, Blaine, Minnesota

and
Meeting also conducted by alternative means

(teleconference or video teleconference) from remote locations

The Board convened the workshop at 1:00 p.m.1 

Attendance: Board members Mike Bradley, John Waller, Jess Robertson, Marcie Weinandt, Steve2 
Wagamon3 

Absent:4 

Staff: Administrator Nick Tomczik, Public Drainage Inspectors Ashlee Ricci and Tom Schmidt, Office5 
Manager Theresa Stasica6 

Consultants: Ellen Hinrichs (video conference) Career Enhancement Options, Inc., District Attorney7 
Chuck Holtman (video conference) Smith Partners; District Engineers Chris Otterness & Joe Lewis8 
Houston Engineering (HEI)9 

Visitors: none10 

11 
Employee Handbook12 

The Board reviewed the draft employee handbook with Administrator Tomczik and the District Human13 
Resources consultant Hinrichs. The draft handbook included the Board�s March 6th workshop revisions.14 
The Board will revisit the Juneteenth Holiday under section 8.1 when they consider their 2024 calendar.15 
The Board by consensus agreed to the following revisions and directed staff to add the Employee Handbook16 
to their April 26, 2023 meeting agenda for consideration.17 

2.2_Delete first sentence of the second paragraph and combine both paragraphs and format.18 

5.1_ 2nd paragraph, 3rd sentence remove �to have.�19 

6.4_4th paragraph, delete �for the first offense� from the end of paragraph.20 

RCWDManager Bylaws21 
The Board reviewed the bylaws. The Board by consensus agreed to 3 changes (highlighted):22 

1_Article VII. Meetings of RCWD Board of Managers; Section 8. Meeting Format; (d) If a manager has a23 
personal interest in a matter, as defined in Section 9 10, that comes before the RCWD Board of24 
Managers, the manager shall not vote on said issue.25 
2 & 3_Article VIII. Parliamentary Authority; Section 1. Parliamentary Authority: Robert�s Rules of Order26 
Newly Revised (Tenth Edition) shall govern guide RCWD�s meetings in all cases to which they are27 
applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these By Laws and/or any special rules of order28 
RCWD may adopt.29 

30 

4



District Attorney Holtman informed the Board that managers must be provided a 30 day notice of the bylaw31 
changes. The workshop minutes will serve as the Board�s 30 day notice. The bylaw changes will be32 
considered at the Board�s May 24, 2023 meeting.33 

34 
The Board took a 5 minute break.35 

36 

District Facilities Evaluation and Management37 
Staff and District Engineer�s Otterness and Lewis began their presentation.38 
The Zoom connection was lost for a few minutes due to computer problems; there were no Zoom39 
participants prior to losing connection or after reconnecting. The presentation began before zoom was40 
restarted.41 
District Engineers Lewis and Otterness presented their evaluation framework and evaluation of42 
management alternatives for the following district facilities:43 
35W Wetland Treatment Area44 
Bethel North45 
Floral Park Berm and Outlet46 
Highway 10 & 694 Outlet47 
Rondeau Lake Outlet Channel48 
Long Lake Sediment Basin49 

50 
The Board agreed with the framework for consideration of District facility management (appendix A) and51 
the technical memo�s overall recommendations. The Board directed Staff and District Engineers to engage52 
the landowners in informational meetings for each listed district facility and discuss roles and53 
responsibilities related to the recommended management approaches. Information will be brought back54 
to the Board from these meetings to discuss any steps needed for the upcoming Watershed Management55 
Plan update and before any actions will be taken.56 
 57 
The Zoom connection was lost for a few minutes at the end of the presentation; there were no Zoom58 
participants prior to losing connection.59 

60 
Administrator Updates61 
Administrator Tomczik updates:62 

Special Board Workshop April 17, 2023 10:00 a.m. at the District office, the agenda is the review of63 
District obligations and its approach as public drainage authority.64 

The District and Board have received a letter from the City of Columbus�s attorney regarding wetland65 
credits. Staff will engage Attorney Kolb and invite the City and its representatives to meet with the66 
Board during its April 26th Board meeting to discuss the City request.67 
The District continues to review with Houston Engineering and Smith Partners the Trost/Metro68 
Shooting settlement to affirm implementation.69 

Will Roach has accepted the Watershed Technician/Inspector position.70 
Mitch Sommers, Technical Field Assistant, resigned, the District will look to refill this position.71 

5



Abigail Tekiela has accepted the Program Support position and will start on May 22.72 
The District has received 11 resumes for the Project Program Manager position. Interviews will be73 
set in the near future.74 

75 
The workshop was adjourned at 3:45 p.m.76 

6



DRAFT 

1 
For Consideration of Approval at the April 26, 2023 Board Meeting.2 
Use these minutes only for reference until that time.3 

4 

Shoreview City Hall Council Chambers
4600 North Victoria Street, Shoreview, Minnesota

and
Meeting also conducted by alternative means

(teleconference or video teleconference) from remote locations

Minutes5 

CALL TO ORDER6 
President Michael Bradley called the meeting to order, a quorum being present, at 9:00 a.m.7 

8 

ROLL CALL9 
Present: President Michael Bradley, 1st Vice Pres. John Waller, 2nd Vice Pres. Steve Wagamon,10 

Treasurer Marcie Weinandt, Secretary Jess Robertson11 
12 

Absent: None13 
14 

Staff Present: District Administrator Nick Tomczik, Permit Coordinator/Wetland Specialist Patrick Hughes,15 
Communications and Outreach Coordinator Kendra Sommerfeld (via video conference),16 
Public Drainage Inspectors Ashlee Ricci and Tom Schmidt, and Office Manager Theresa17 
Stasica18 

19 
Consultants: District Engineer Chris Otterness from Houston Engineering, Inc. (HEI); District Engineer20 

Adam Nies from Houston Engineering, Inc. (HEI); District Attorney Louis Smith (from Smith21 
Partners22 

23 
Visitors: None24 

25 

SETTING OF THE AGENDA26 
Administrator Tomczik requested a new action item #4, Office Cubicle Project.27 

28 
Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Wagamon, to approve the agenda as revised.29 
Motion carried 5 0.30 

31 

READINGOF THEMINUTES AND THEIR APPROVAL32 
Minutes of the March 22, 2023 Board of Managers Regular Meeting. Motion by Manager Wagamon,33 
seconded by Manager Robertson, to approve the minutes as presented. Motion carried 5 0.34 

35 

7



DRAFT
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2023 Page 2 of 7

CONSENT AGENDA36 
The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the staff recommendation and37 
associated documentation unless a Manager or another interested person requests opportunity for discussion:38 
Table of Contents Permit Applications Requiring Board Action39 
No. Applicant Location Plan Type Recommendation40 
23 012 City of New Brighton New Brighton Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 4 items41 

42 

23 013 State of Minnesota Blaine Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 7 items43 
Department of Administration Flood Alteration44 

45 

It was moved by Manager Weinandt and seconded by Manager Waller, to approve the consent agenda46 
as outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with RCWD District Engineer�s Findings and47 
Recommendations, dated April 4, 2023. Motion carried 5 0.48 

OPENMIC/PUBLIC COMMENT49 

None.50 

ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION51 
1. Anoka County Ditch (ACD) 10 22 32 Petition Engineer�s Report52 

Public Drainage Inspector Schmidt stated that at the March 22, 2023 meeting, the Board had53 
adopted Resolution 2023 05, accepting the petition to add drainage area to ACD 10 22 32 and54 
appointing the District Engineer to investigate. He noted that the report has been completed, so55 
the next step would be to schedule a public hearing and explained that staff was suggesting that it56 
be held on May 10, 2023.57 

58 
Adam Nies, Houston Engineering, introduced himself.59 

60 
District Engineer Otterness explained that District Engineer Nies had begun taking over the primary61 
role on leading the drainage projects in the Districts. He stated that he has been the project62 
manager for the JD 3 repairs that are coming up soon.63 

64 
District Engineer Nies gave an overview of the report on the ACD 10 22 32 Branch 3 petition for65 
outlet of additional lands. He reviewed the site location, proposed change in drainage area,66 
capacity of the system, mitigating site run off, proposed infiltration basins, and permitting. He67 
explained that the proposed outlet will not impair the utility of Branch 3 so staff is recommending68 
the Board adopt the findings and order authorization of the outlet of additional lands to ACD 10 2269 
32, Branch 3. He reviewed the recommended outlet fee and the additional fee for related costs70 
incurred by the District for administration of this petition.71 

72 
President Bradley asked if the District was working on conjunction with Coon Creek.73 

8



DRAFT
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2023 Page 3 of 7

74 
District Engineer Otterness explained that through the petition the District worked with Coon Creek.75 
He noted that Coon Creek does not have an interest in trying to retain the extra water going onto76 
their watershed.77 

78 
Motion by Manager Wagamon, seconded by Manager Waller, to accept the engineers report79 
and to direct staff to schedule and notice a public hearing on May 10th, 2023, during the regular80 
board meeting. Motion carried 5 0.81 

2. 2022 RCWD Financial Report Audit (Nick Tomczik)82 
District Administrator Tomczik explained that annually, the District is to complete a financial report83 
and audit. He stated that was completed and prepared by Redpath and Company for the year84 
ending December 31, 2022. He noted that the report had been sent to the State Auditor�s office and85 
the Board of Water and Soil Resources. He stated that the Report on Internal Controls did not86 
identify any deficiencies that they would consider a material weakness and the Report on Minnesota87 
Legal Compliance had nothing come to their attention they would cause them to believe that the88 
District failed to comply with the provisions. He explained that the individuals from Redpath and89 
Company who completed the reports are independent of those individuals who are involved in the90 
day to day operations of the District.91 

92 
Manager Wagamon expressed his appreciation to staff for their hard work because they once again93 
were able to achieve a clean audit. He noted that he sat in on the audit this year, but Manager94 
Weinandt, as the Treasurer, was the lead on that process.95 

96 
Manager Weinandt made note of the comment in the report about the gun club and the97 
recommendation to indicate a difference in the liability. She stated that there was also some98 
adjustment to the Long Lake sediment basin. She stated that she is very pleased with Redpath and99 
how they presented the information.100 

101 
Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Bradley, to accept and authorize the filing102 
of the Rice Creek Watershed District 2022 Annual Financial Report and Audit Motion carried 5103 
0.104 

105 
3. RCWD Annual Report106 

Communications and Outreach Coordinator Sommerfeld presented the draft 2022 RCWD Annual107 
Report. She noted that it followed previous years formatting and explained that she would108 
welcome feedback from the Board.109 

110 
President Bradley noted that he found the draft 2022 Annual Report quite readable.111 

112 
Manager Weinandt asked how this report would be used and asked if it would be reviewed later113 
today during the City/County Partner meeting.114 

9



DRAFT
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2023 Page 4 of 7

115 
District Administrator Tomczik explained that this was not on the agenda for the City/County Partner116 
meeting, but the Annual Report would be placed on the District�s website.117 

118 
Manager Wagamon stated that he wanted to echo the comments made by President Bradley that119 
this report was very readable. He noted that he felt that it had quite a bit of information in it and120 
was laid out very nicely.121 

122 
Manager Weinandt asked if this was something that was usually shared with the District�s counties123 
or cities and if staff would somehow give them a heads up that it is available on the website. She124 
stated that she feels that there is a lot of good information in the report and would hope that125 
Outreach and Communications Coordinator Sommerfeld takes this opportunity to push some of this126 
information out rather than just waiting for it to be discovered.127 

128 
District Administrator Tomczik stated that staff can do that and noted that he did not think there129 
was anything wrong with sharing the successes and plans of the District. He suggested that it be130 
sent out to the various County Administrators.131 

132 
Manager Waller stated that he also thought the report was very nice and agreed that it was a133 
positive change from past reports. He stated that he liked seeing the picture of the District staff134 
as well as the other photographs and elements of color that were included.135 

136 
Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Wagamon, to approve the 2022 Annual137 
Report with any necessary formatting and non substantive changes and authorize submission to138 
the Board of Water and Soil Resources and other required recipients by the deadline. Motion139 
carried 5 0.140 

141 
4. Office Space � Cubicles Project142 

District Administrator Tomczik stated that he had distributed a hand out prior to the meeting for this item.143 
He explained that in October of 2022 the Board reviewed an organizational chart identifying some future144 
needs of the District. He noted that new staff positions will require appropriate work spaces for these145 
individuals and reviewed the quotes that were received.146 

147 
Motion by Manager Bradley, seconded by Manager Weinandt, to approve office space cubicle148 
project, not to exceed $14,000, authorizing the District Administrator to enter individual quotes.149 
Motion carried 5 0.150 
 151 

5. US Sitework, Inc. Partial Pay Request #4 Anoka County Ditch (ACD) 53 62 Main Trunk Repair152 
Project153 
Public Drainage Inspector Ricci gave an overview of the Partial Pay Request #4 for work on ACD 53 62 in Circle154 
Pines and Blaine. She noted that tree removal and excavation has been completed from 35 to Lexington155 
which is what is included in this request.156 

10



DRAFT
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2023 Page 5 of 7

157 
Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Waller, to approve US Sitework, Inc.�s pay158 
request #4 as submitted and certified by the District Engineer and directs staff to issue a159 
payment in the amount of $20,737.31. Motion carried 5 0.160 
 161 

6. Check Register Dated April 12, 2023, in the Amount of $107,276.00 Prepared by Redpath and162 
Company163 
Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Waller, to approve check register dated164 
April 12, 2023, in the Amount of $107,276.00 as prepared by Redpath and Company. Motion165 
carried 5 0.166 

167 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION168 
1. Anoka County Ditch (ACD) 53 62 Main Trunk Repair Change Order and Project Update169 

Public Drainage Inspector Ricci gave a brief update on the change order that was issued for ACD 53170 
62. She explained that US Site work has requested an extension to the original completion date of171 
July 2, 2023 because of site conditions throughout this past winter. She stated staff is172 
recommending that they keep the substantial completion date of July 2, 2023 and extend the final173 
completion date to October 1, 2023.174 

175 
Manager Waller stated that he would reiterate the importance of working closely with Circle Pines176 
City staff because they will be diligent in their observation of the work. Public drainage inspector177 
Ricci confirmed that staff have worked closely with the City and will continue to do so.178 

179 
Additionally, Public Drainage Inspector Ricci noted that the contractor was aware they need to180 
give City staff advanced notice to have city staff present before completing work on any of the city181 
outfalls.182 

183 
District Administrator Tomczik stated that District staff routinely meets with the contractor and the184 
city, on site. He noted that he believes a good place to view the site may be from behind Fleet Farm.185 

186 
Public Drainage Inspector Ricci stated that easier access to the site may be from Blaine�s Centennial187 
Green Park because there is a trail located in the park where you could walk right up to the ditch.188 

189 
2. District Engineer Update and Timeline190 

District Engineer Otterness stated noted earlier that JD 3 plans and specs were being bid out and191 
that the bid will close on April 14, 2023.192 

193 
3. Administrator Updates194 

District Administrator Tomczik noted that Mr. Abel Green has accepted the position of Technical195 
Field Assistant and will start next week. He reminded the Board that the City/County Partner196 
meeting will be later today at 1:00 p.m.197 

11



DRAFT
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2023 Page 6 of 7

198 
President Bradley asked if an agenda had been sent out for that meeting.199 

200 
Office Manager Stasica explained that the notice had been sent out and the agenda was available201 
on the website.202 

203 
District Administrator Tomczik stated that the meeting will be held at the New Brighton Community204 
Center at 400 Tenth Street NW.205 

206 
Manager Robertson stated that she would be unable to attend the meeting.207 

208 
Permit Coordinator/Wetland Specialist Hughes read aloud the proposed agenda that was available209 
on the District�s website.210 

211 
4. Managers Update212 

Manager Waller attended the Washington County Consortium meeting where the 3M settlement213 
was discussed. He stated that he spoke by phone earlier today with Commissioner Miron who will214 
be unable to attend the City/County Partner meeting later today due to a family emergency. He215 
stated that he also spoke via phone to Birchwood Councilmember McCarthy who shared with him216 
that they are getting ready to sign the MOA following review by their new engineers. He suggested217 
that the Board consider appearing at city council meetings when things like this progress or grants218 
are awarded.219 

220 
Manager Weinandt reminded the Board that on April 18, 2023 there is an in person meeting of the221 
Metro Watersheds.222 

223 
Manager Wagamon attended the CAC meeting and noted that he thinks there is a really nice mix of224 
people serving on that committee.225 

226 
President Bradley stated that earlier this winter, he and District Administrator Tomczik tried to meet227 
with Senator Marty and Senator Kunesh to support the District�s interest in getting funding for228 
projects. He stated that they were busy and did not have time to meet with them but a229 
representative from one of their offices contacted them later and told that they were very230 
interested for next year. He stated that they will start pursuing this with more concentrated effort231 
in November with the hopes that they may sponsor a bill.232 

233 
Manager Robertson noted that she would strongly suggest that the District reach out to Senator234 
Michael Kreun because he has a background with the Coon Creek Watershed, so he would235 
understand the need and what language may need to be in the proposed bill.236 

237 

12



DRAFT
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2023 Page 7 of 7

ADJOURNMENT238 
Motion by Manager Wagamon, seconded by Manager Waller, to adjourn the meeting at 9:54 a.m.239 
Motion carried 5 0.240 

241 

13



Draft

For Consideration of Approval at the April 26, 2023 Board Meeting.
Use these minutes only for reference until that time.

RCWD BOARD OFMANAGERS SPECIALWORKSHOP
Monday, April 17, 2023

Rice Creek Watershed District Conference Room
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE, Suite 611, Blaine, Minnesota

and
Meeting also conducted by alternative means

(teleconference or video teleconference) from remote locations

The Board convened the workshop at 10:00 a.m.1 

Attendance: Board members Mike Bradley, John Waller, Jess Robertson, Marcie Weinandt, Steve2 
Wagamon3 

Absent:4 

Staff: Administrator Nick Tomczik; Public Drainage Inspectors Ashlee Ricci and Tom Schmidt, Technical5 
Field Assistant Abel Green; Office Manager Theresa Stasica (video conference)6 

Consultants: District Attorney Louis Smith (video conference) Smith Partners; District Engineer Chris7 
Otterness Houston Engineering (HEI); Attorney John Kolb Rinke Noonan8 

Visitors: Washington County Commissioner Fran Miron, Perry Wagamon, City of Columbus Council9 
Member Janet Hegland10 

11 

12 
Review of District obligations and its approach as public drainage authority13 

District consultants and staff gave a presentation to the Board regarding the history of RCWD public14 
drainage system management, and its evolution toward current management policy. The presentation15 
included: County Management 1890 1973, RCWD early years 1973 2000, Resource Management Plans16 
2000 2007, transitional period 2007 2011, systematic management period 2011 current, District�s public17 
drainage system cost allocation policy, repair (reconstruction) approach and typical repair process,18 
approach for selection of repair, maintenance, and landowner engagement policy.19 

20 
The workshop was adjourned at 12:36 p.m.21 

22 

14



CONSENT AGENDA
The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the
staff recommendation and associated documentation unless a Manager or another
interested person requests opportunity for discussion:
Table of Contents Permit Applications Requiring Board Action
No. Applicant Plan Type Recommendation
22 116 City of Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 4 items

Columbia Heights Street & Utility Plan

23 009 City of Lino Lakes

Location 
Columbia Heights

Lino Lakes Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 3 items
US Home, LLC (dba Lennar)

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager
_____________, to approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of
Contents in accordance with RCWD District Engineer�s Findings and
Recommendations, dated April 18, 2023.

15



4/20/2023 CAPROC = Conditional Approval Pending Receipt of Changes Page 1 of 1 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 
CONSENT AGENDA 

April 26, 2023 

It was moved by __________________________________ and seconded by 

______________________________ to Approve, Conditionally Approve Pending Receipt  

Of Changes, or Deny, the Permit Application noted in the following Table of Contents, in  

accordance with the District Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, as contained in  

the Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, as contained in the Engineer’s Reports  

dated April 18, 2023. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Permit 
Application 
Number Applicant Page  Recommendation 

Permit Location Map 16 

22-116  City of Columbia Heights 17  CAPROC 

23-009  City of Lino Lakes 23  CAPROC 
US Home, LC (dba Lennar) 



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Houston Engineering, Inc. Task Orders
Date Number Title Amount
4/3/2023 2023 004 2023 District Wide Modeling Program Annual

Updates
$22,500

4/10/2023 2023 005 Ramsey County Ditch 1 Historic Review and
Technical Information for Public Drainage
Proceedings

$27,500

4/19/2023 2023 006 Permit Program Compliance Audit $27,500

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager
_____________, to approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of
Contents.

28



Date: April 18, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Nick Tomczik, Administrator
Subject: Houston Engineering Task Order 2023 004 � 2023 District Wide Modeling

Program Annual Updates

Introduction
Rice Creek Watershed District maintains a District Wide Modeling Program (DWMP). Annually, the
District maintains the DWMP, this is that task order.

Background
The District DWMP is a foundational tool in the completion of District work. The District annually
maintains the RCWD�s products focused primarily on maintaining information needed by the hydrology
and hydraulic models. The DWMP maintenance debugs issues and maintains accuracy of the tool.

Staff Recommendation
Staff support the maintenance and updates to the DWMP.

Proposed Board Action
Motion to approve and authorize board President to sign Houston Engineering Task Order 2023 �
004, 2023 District wide modeling program annual updates.

Attachment
Houston Engineering Task Order 2023 � 004

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



Date: April 18, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Tom Schmidt, Public Drainage Inspector
Subject: Houston Engineering, Inc. (HEI) Task Order No. 2023 005, Ramsey County

Ditch 1 Historical Review

Introduction
Staff is seeking Board approval of HEI Task Order No. 2023 005 to complete a Historical Review
Memorandum for Ramsey County Ditch 1 (RCD 1).

Background
The District has been systematically investigating and utilizing the records re establishment process to
determine the As Constructed and Subsequently Improved Condition (ACSIC) of its public drainage
systems. The ACSIC is utilized in defining the extent of repair and maintenance work on public drainage
systems, and RCD 1 is the final system to be completed. HEI has developed a Task Order for this work,
which is being presented today for Board consideration.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends proceeding with the HEI Task Order.

Proposed Motion
Manager _____________ moves to authorize the Board President to execute HEI Task Order 2023 05 to
complete a Historical Review Memorandum for RCD 1 for an amount of $27,500.00.

Attachment
HEI Task Order 2023 05

37



38



39



40



41



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District 

1 | P a g e

Date: April 18, 2023 
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Patrick Hughes, Permit Coordinator/Wetland Specialist
Subject: Houston Engineering Task Order 2023-06 - Permit Program Compliance Audit

Introduction
RCWD with Houston Engineering completes a regular permit program compliance audit for those 
communities within the District that have adopted regulations consistent with RCWD standards.  

Background
Three municipalities within RCWD have become “Level 2” communities through approval of their Local 
Water Management Plans (LWMP) and subsequent Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  The City of 
Hugo has been a Level 2 community since 2004, Circle Pines since 2016, and most recently, Mounds 
View in the fall of 2021.  Consistent with LWMP approvals and MOUs, these communities have adopted 
local ordinances that incorporate the regulatory standards of RCWD Rules C (stormwater management), 
D (sediment and erosion control), E (floodplain alteration), and F (wetland alteration).  RCWD does not 
issue permits for these rules within each respective municipality.  However, RCWD does retain the right 
to monitor the permitting activity of these communities through an audit of the permitting program.  
This will be the first permit program compliance audit since RCWD’s latest rule change (effective 
01/01/2021) and will also be the first compliance audit for the City of Mounds View.  

The permit program compliance audit will include review both by RCWD staff and the District Engineer.  
Houston Engineering will assist in reviewing two permits from the City of Hugo, one permit from the City 
of Circle Pines, and one permit from the City of Mounds View.  An engineer’s report will be completed 
for each permit with a summary of the reviewer’s findings.  After completing the reviews, RCWD and 
Houston Engineering will set up a meeting to discuss our findings with each of the cities to review the 
results and provide recommendations, if any.  Houston Engineering has provided a task order for the 
scope of services with an amount not to exceed $27,500.

Staff Recommendation
Staff is recommending that the Board of Managers approve the Houston Engineering Task Order No. 
2023-006 for staff and engineer to proceed with the 2023 Permit Program Compliance Audit for the 
cities of Circle Pines, Hugo, and Mounds View.

Request for Board Consensus OR Proposed Motion
Manager ________ moves to approve the Houston Engineering Task Order No. 2023-006, authorizing 
the board President to sign, seconded by Manager _______.

Attachments 
Houston Engineering Task Order No. 2023-006 

42



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task Order No. 2023-006
Rice Creek Watershed District

2023 Permit Program Compliance Audit of Level 2 Cities

RCWD Administrative Information:

Houston Engineering Project No.:

Task Order Purpose:

Professional Services Rendered:

43



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task Order No. 2023-006
Rice Creek Watershed District

2023 Permit Program Compliance Audit of Level 2 Cities

Deliverables:

Schedule and Compensation:

$27,500.

Assumptions:

44



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task Order No. 2023-006
Rice Creek Watershed District

2023 Permit Program Compliance Audit of Level 2 Cities

SIGNATURES:

Task Order

April 26, 2023

Rice Creek Watershed District Houston Engineering, Inc.

45



PUBLICMEETING: ANOKA COUNTY DITCH 10 22 32
EVALUATION OFMAINTENANCE ALTERNATIVES

46



4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE #611 | Blaine, MN 55449 | T: 763 398 3070 | F: 763 398 3088 | www.ricecreek.org

BOARD OF
MANAGERS

Jess Robertson Steven P. Wagamon Michael J. Bradley Marcie Weinandt John J. Waller
Anoka County Anoka County Ramsey County Ramsey County Washington County

St. Paul Pioneer Press newspaper April 5, 12, and 19, 2023
Life newspaper on April 14, 2023
Forest Lake Times newspaper on April 13, 2023
RCWD postcard notice to the owners of property within the sub watershed of ACD 10 22 32, mailed
April 5, 2023
RCWD notice mailed to Cities of Blaine, Columbus and Lino Lakes; Anoka County; Anoka County
Engineer, Anoka Conservation District mailed April 4, 2023
District website & email noticing April 4, 2023
District posted at office April 4, 2023
RCWD notice mailed to DNR, BWSR, MnDot, and ACOE April 4, 2023

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD) Board of Managers will
hold a public information meeting on the management approach for the portion of Anoka
County Ditch 10 22 32 north of Pine Street on Wednesday, April 26, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. in the
Shoreview City Hall Council Chambers, 4600 Victoria St N, Shoreview, MN 55126. Public
participation using interactive technology will also be possible using Zoom. Please contact
Theresa Stasica at tstasica@ricecreek.org for instructions. District staff and the engineer will
give a short presentation on recommended maintenance alternatives, followed by an
opportunity for public questions/comments and input on managing the drainage system. A
Draft Engineer�s Technical Memorandum, Anoka County Ditch 10 22 32 Evaluation of
Maintenance Alternatives dated December 16, 2022, can be viewed on the District�s
website: www.ricecreek.org under Public Drainage or at the District office at 4325 Pheasant
Ridge Dr. NE, Suite# 611. Comments and questions on the management of the drainage system
can be provided in person at the meeting or sent by email (preferred) to Tom Schmidt at
tschmidt@ricecreek.org or by phone: at 763 398 3076 or by mail to the address above.

Time: Apr 26, 2023 09:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89882321662?pwd=YThVdW03ams5cDJ6SitIODYraDRuZz09
Meeting ID: 898 8232 1662
Passcode: 332590
Dial by your location +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
Meeting ID: 898 8232 1662
Passcode: 332590

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Wri en correspondence received by the District on 
the ACD 10 22 32 drainage system per mee ng 
no ce. 

55



56



57



58



59



60



H:\COLUMBUS_CI_MN\0R1129677\1_Corres\C_To Others\2023-04-18_ACD 10-22-32 RCWD Letter.docx

April 19, 2023

Mr. Nick Tomczik
Administrator
Rice Creek Watershed District
(Transmitted via Email)

RE: ACD 10-22-32
City of Columbus
BMI Project No.: 0R1.129677

Dear Mr. Tomczik,

I represent the City of Columbus as their City Engineer.  I have been asked to review information and 
history related to ACD 10-22-32 and provide response to the Watershed District related to 
proposed improvements on this system.  

In general, the Mayor and City Council, as well as city staff, are very supportive of maintenance and 
improvement activities on all the ditch systems within the city limits and those outside of the city that 
provide a positive drainage benefit to the city.  Given its flat topography, effective drainage systems are
critical to maintaining the integrity of existing residential and commercial properties as well as providing 
mechanisms for future development within the city.

In regard specifically to ACD 10-22-32, we are very supportive of improvements that provide relief to 
properties that have experienced high saturation levels over the past 20 years, due to numerous factors 
that are at play.  The City also recognizes that the RCWD is the authority for this system and controls the 
decision-making process for any improvement.  From a technical viewpoint, in my review of the 
alternatives that are laid out in 

of the opinion that Alternative 4 would provide the maximum benefit to the city and its property 
owners.

efforts to keep us in the loop as your discussions move forward.  Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact me at Kevin.Bittner@Bolton-Menk.com or at 612-270-6926.  

Sincerely,

Bolton & Menk, Inc.

Kevin F. Bittner, P.E. (MN, ND, IA)
Columbus City Engineer

61



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
1. Aquatic Plant Survey Services (Matt Kocian)

62



MEMORANDUM 
Rice Creek Watershed District

1 | P a g e

Date: April 18, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Matt Kocian, Lake and Stream Program Manager
Subject: 2023 Agreement for Aquatic Plant Survey Services

Introduction
Seeking Board approval for 2023 aquatic plant survey services

Background
The District regularly conducts aquatic plant surveys in lakes around the Watershed. These
surveys serve many purposes:

Mapping of aquatic invasive plants (i.e. curlyleaf pondweed and Eurasian watermilfoil) is
required by DNR prior to issuance of permits for management.
Mapping the extent and species richness of native plants is a valuable diagnostic tool for
lake management. For example, low plant diversity and coverage can be indicative of a
high carp abundance.
Increases in native aquatic plant coverage and diversity are one of several monitoring
metrics used to assess lake restoration projects. For example, following restoration
efforts on Bald Eagle Lake, increases in plant diversity and maximum growth depth were
documented.

Determining which lakes get aquatic plant surveys is an annual exercise; decision factors
include budget, internal need (based on past or upcoming RCWD led projects), lake association
request, and agency partner cooperation.

Aquatic plant surveys are conducted by District staff, partner agencies (e.g. DNR and county
conservation districts), and a consultant. For approximately the past 20 years, the District�s
consultant for these services is Steve McComas of Blue Water Science (BWS). Over the past 16
years (my tenure at the District), BWS has delivered these services on time and on budget
every year. BWS has economical hourly rates. Examples of aquatic plant survey products are
shown in Figure 1.

63



MEMORANDUM 
Rice Creek Watershed District

2 | P a g e

Figure 1 Example of aquatic plant survey products; LEFT: Eurasian watermilfoil delineation on
Long Lake (New Brighton), CENTER: Point intercept plant survey showing species richness on
Peltier Lake, RIGHT: Curlyleaf pondweed delineation on Bald Eagle Lake

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommend approving the attached quote for aquatic plant survey services with Blue
Water Science. Staff annually plan for these services as a component of the District�s program
of lake and stream monitoring. Costs are included in the 2023 approved budget.

Proposed Motion
Manager _____________ moves to authorize the Administrator to enter into professional
services agreement with Blue Water Science for aquatic plant surveys for an amount not to
exceed $24,500. The administrator is authorized to issue contract amendments for an amount
no to exceed 10% of the contract price ($2,450).

Attachments
2023 Blue Water Science quote

64



65



66



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
2. 2023 Curlyleaf Pondweed Management (Matt Kocian)

67



Date: April 18, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Matt Kocian, Lake and Stream Program Manager
Subject: 2023 Curlyleaf Pondweed Management

Introduction
Seeking Board approval for 2023 curlyleaf pondweed management activities � vendor contracts and lake
association cost share agreements

Background
Curlyleaf pondweed (Potamogeton crispus) is an invasive aquatic plant found in many Twin Cities Metro
Area lakes. Curlyleaf has an unusual life cycle; unlike native aquatic plants, which grow early summer
through late fall, curlyleaf begins growing late in autumn. It survives under the ice during the winter
and grows rapidly after ice out, often creating dense mats of vegetation. Around mid summer the plant
dies and decomposes, releasing accumulated phosphorus into the water column. The phosphorus
contributes to algae growth and declines in water clarity. Additionally, the void in aquatic plants created
by the mid summer decline in curlyleaf further exacerbates algae blooms by exposing nutrient rich lake
sediments to resuspension, and by reducing habitat for algae eating zooplankton. For this reason, the
RCWD has actively managed curlyleaf using aquatic herbicides. Permanent control (i.e. eradication) is
not possible. However, annual herbicide treatments are effective at reducing the impacts of curlyleaf
pondweed.

The purpose of managing curlyleaf pondweed is 1) to improve water clarity, via the mechanisms
described above, and 2) to promote the growth of healthy, native lake plants. Although the herbicide
used to control curlyleaf is not selective, it is applied during the early spring when only curlyleaf is
growing. Therefore, only curlyleaf is affected; native plants are not harmed.

Managing curlyleaf pondweed is consistent with RCWD�s Aquatic Invasive Species Policy, as well as
RCWD�s goals for protecting and improving water quality. The RCWD has partnered with lake
associations for over 20 years to reduce the abundance of curlyleaf pondweed using aquatic herbicides.
Lakes are selected for management based on need (a problem exists), and lake association desire and

68



willingness to financially partner; costs are split 50/50 between the District and lake associations, after
applicable DNR grants.

For 2023, District costs are estimated to be $16,000. However, the District must pay upfront costs, prior
to reimbursements from DNR grants and lake associations. Thus, we are asking the Board to approve
total estimated costs of $42,000. The District�s 2023 budget for curlyleaf pondweed management is
$50,000.

Notes on cost:
Quotes for curlyleaf pondweed treatment services are solicited from at least two vendors each
year.

The estimated 2023 costs are conservative. The actual 2023 costs will depend on early season
curlyleaf pondweed surveys and lake homeowner willingness to cost share. It�s very common
for actual costs to be much lower than estimated costs. For example, the total estimated costs
in 2020 were $35,000, but the total actual costs were about $18,300.

Consistent with the RCWD Aquatic Invasive Species Policy, only large (> 1 acre), dense, and
monotypic areas of curlyleaf pondweed are managed.

As in past years, if curlyleaf pondweed is not found in sufficiently large and dense patches, or if
lake homeowners do not wish to financially partner, treatment will not occur.

As a policy, the District does not treat near shore areas on lakes (within 150 feet); by DNR rule,
treatment in these areas requires the permission of the landowner

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommend that the Board approve RCWD 2023 curlyleaf pondweed management activities and
expenditures outlined in this memo.

Proposed Motions

Attachments

69



RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR

2022 CLEAR LAKE CURLYLEAF PONDWEED CONTROL

THIS AGREEMENT is made by the Clear Lake Association (Cooperators) and the Rice
Creek Watershed District (District), a Minnesota Special Purpose Unit of Government with
powers set forth at Minnesota Statutes 103B and 103D.

WHEREAS, the District intends to reduce internal phosphorus loading associated with
the mid summer die off of invasive curlyleaf pondweed.

WHERAS, the District intends to promote native aquatic plant growth by limiting
competition from invasive curlyleaf pondweed.

WHEREAS, the District intends to apply an early season EPA approved aquatic herbicide
to control the density of invasive curlyleaf pondweed (Project).

WHEREAS, the District and Cooperators desire to share, equally, the cost for the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises set forth herein and other good
and valuable consideration, the District and Cooperators agree as follows:

1. The District, in its discretion, may select, retain and pay a contractor for execution of
the Project

2. The timing of the Project will depend on weather, lake water temperature, and DNR
permit conditions. Any and all work will be completed no later than Jun 15, 2023.

3. The total cost of the Project will not exceed $2,700.00. The actual cost of the Project
will depend on the number of acres of culryleaf pondweed identified in a field
delineation conducted by the District. The field delineation will be conducted prior
to the Project.

4. The District will provide the results of the field delineation to the Cooperators upon
request.

5. The Cooperators will be jointly and severally responsible for reimbursement to the
District for 50% of the total costs of executing the project, not to exceed $400, in
accordance with cost estimates provided in Table 1 below:

70



Table 1. Financial Responsibility for Project, Not to Exceed

RESPONSIBLE PARTY COST ($) % OF TOTAL
DNR Grant
District

0.00
1350.00

XX
50

Cooperators 1350.00 50
TOTAL PROJECT COST (not to exceed) 2700.00 100

6. If the actual Total Project Cost exceeds the estimate provided in Table 1, the District
shall be responsible for any excess cost. If the actual Total Project Cost is less than
the estimate provided in Table 1, the cost not covered by the DNR grant shall be split
evenly (50% each) between the District and the Cooperators.

7. The District will invoice the Cooperators for their share of the cost; payment will be
due to the District within 30 working days.

8. The District assumes the full and sole responsibility for coordinating the execution of
the Project, including but not limited to obtaining permits as needed, retaining a
contractor and coordinating the implementation schedule.

9. Each Cooperator agrees to hold harmless the District from all present and future
claims that may arise from the Project.

10. The effective date of this agreement shall be the date it is executed by the Rice
Creek Watershed District and Cooperators. This agreement will remain in effect for
six (6) months after this Effective Date. Any modification or cancellation of this
agreement shall be in writing and signed by all parties.

11. Any notice provided under this Agreement to the District will be sent by mail or
email at the following addresses:

Rice Creek Watershed District
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE #611
Blaine, MN 55449
mkocian@ricecreek.org

12. Any notice provided under this agreement to one or more of the Cooperators will be
sent by mail or email the respective addresses listed below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed.

71



RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT,

Administrator

Date

CLEAR LAKE ASSOCIATION

__________________________________________________________
Cooperator Name Address

__________________________________________________________
Cooperator Signature Date

___________________________________________________________
Cooperator Name Address

__________________________________________________________
Cooperator Signature Date

___________________________________________________________
Cooperator Name Address

___________________________________________________________
Cooperator Signature Date

__________________________________________________________
Cooperator Name Address

__________________________________________________________
Cooperator Signature Date

72



LAKE MANAGEMENT, INC.
Minnesota Operations 

 10400 185th Street North 
 Marine on St. Croix, MN  55047 

 (651) 433-3283 Phone            Fax # (651) 433-5316
Email: info@lakemanagementinc.com

PROPOSAL FOR AQUATIC NUISANCE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2023         

 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 

The above payment and conditions are satisfactory and are accepted. Lake Management, Inc. 
 is authorized to conduct the management program described above.  Payment will be made 

as indicated above.  If you have any questions regarding the effectiveness of the treatment, 
please call us between the 14th and 18th day following treatment. 

 
 Signature                                                                          Date 
 
 Representing   
  
 73



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
3. Employee Handbook (Nick Tomczik)

74



Date: April 18, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Nick Tomczik, Administrator
Subject: Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook

Introduction
The District has been working to update its employee handbook. The next step in the process is for the
Board to adopt the employee handbook.

Background
An employee handbook is a tool providing a framework of policies from which all members of the
District will address routine matters as well as provide policy for situations that may never happen. The
goal of the handbook is to provide clarity of what staff expect from the District and what the District
expects from staff.

The Board at its April 10th workshop reviewed the board directed adjustments to the employee handbook.
The Board by consensus agreed to the following additional revisions and directed staff to add the
Employee Handbook to their April 26, 2023 meeting agenda for consideration.

2.2_Delete first sentence of the second paragraph and combine both paragraphs and format.
5.1_ 2nd paragraph, 3rd sentence remove �to have.�
6.4_4th paragraph, delete �for the first offense� from the end of paragraph.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends proceeding with adoption of the employee handbook.

Proposed Motion
Manager _____________ moves adoption of the Rice Creek Watershed District employee handbook.

Attachment
Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook

75



Rice Creek
Watershed District
Employee Handbook

Adopted DATE

76



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 1

77



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 2

1 CONTENTS

2 Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 5

2.1 Welcome ....................................................................................................................................... 5

2.2 About Rice Creek Watershed District ........................................................................................... 6

2.3 Employment at Will....................................................................................................................... 6

3 Equal Opportunity and Commitment to Inclusion................................................................................ 7

3.1 Equal Opportunity......................................................................................................................... 7

3.2 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable Accommodation .................................... 8

3.3 Commitment to Inclusion ............................................................................................................. 8

3.4 Harassment and Complaint Procedure......................................................................................... 9

4 Conflicts of Interest and Confidentiality ............................................................................................. 12

4.1 Conflicts of Interest..................................................................................................................... 12

4.2 Confidentiality............................................................................................................................. 12

5 Employment Relationship................................................................................................................... 14

5.1 Employee Privacy ........................................................................................................................ 14

5.2 Employment Classification.......................................................................................................... 14

5.3 Workweek and Hours of Work.................................................................................................... 15

5.4 Time Records............................................................................................................................... 15

5.5 Overtime .....................................................................................................................................16

5.6 Flex Time .....................................................................................................................................16

5.7 Deductions from Pay/Safe Harbor Exempt Employees .............................................................. 16

5.8 Paychecks ....................................................................................................................................17

5.9 Expenses......................................................................................................................................17

5.10 Salary Administration.................................................................................................................. 17

5.11 Professional Development.......................................................................................................... 18

5.12 Personnel Files ............................................................................................................................ 19

5.13 Employment of Relatives and Domestic Partners ...................................................................... 19

5.14 Separation from Employment..................................................................................................... 20

6 Workplace Safety ................................................................................................................................21

6.1 Commitment to Safety................................................................................................................ 21

6.2 Drug Free and Alcohol Free Workplace ..................................................................................... 21

6.3 Smoke Free Workplace............................................................................................................... 22

6.4 Workplace Violence Prevention.................................................................................................. 22

78



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 3

6.5 Vehicle/Equipment Use and Safety ............................................................................................ 23

6.6 Emergency Closings .................................................................................................................... 24

7 Workplace Guidelines ......................................................................................................................... 25

7.1 Attendance..................................................................................................................................25

7.2 Telework......................................................................................................................................25

7.3 Outside Employment .................................................................................................................. 26

7.4 Dress and Grooming ................................................................................................................... 26

7.5 Social Media Acceptable Use ...................................................................................................... 26

7.6 Bulletin Boards ............................................................................................................................ 28

7.7 Solicitation ..................................................................................................................................28

7.8 Computers, Internet, E Mail, and Other Resources.................................................................... 28

7.9 Performance Appraisal................................................................................................................ 30

7.10 Disciplinary Procedure ................................................................................................................ 30

8 Time Off and Leaves of Absence......................................................................................................... 32

8.1 Holidays.......................................................................................................................................32

8.2 Vacation ......................................................................................................................................33

8.3 Personal or Sick Leave................................................................................................................. 34

8.4 Leave for Fitness ......................................................................................................................... 35

8.5 Family and Medical Leave........................................................................................................... 35

8.6 Work Related Injury or Illness .................................................................................................... 38

8.7 Military Leave.............................................................................................................................. 38

8.8 Unpaid Personal Leave................................................................................................................ 39

8.9 Bereavement Leave .................................................................................................................... 39

8.10 Jury Duty/Court Appearance ...................................................................................................... 39

8.11 Time Off for Voting ..................................................................................................................... 40

9 Employee Benefits .............................................................................................................................. 41

9.1 Medical and Dental Insurance .................................................................................................... 41

9.2 Group Life Insurance................................................................................................................... 41

9.3 Short Term Disability .................................................................................................................. 41

9.4 Long Term Disability ................................................................................................................... 42

9.5 Retirement ..................................................................................................................................42

9.6 Deferred Compensation (optional) ............................................................................................. 42

9.7 Health Care Savings Plan............................................................................................................. 42

79



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 4

9.8 Flexible Spending Account (optional) ......................................................................................... 42

9.9 Workers� Compensation ............................................................................................................. 43

 

 

80



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 5

2 INTRODUCTION

2.1 WELCOME

Welcome to Rice Creek Watershed District (District)! We are delighted that you have chosen to
join our organization and hope that you will enjoy a long and successful career with us. As you
become familiar with our culture and mission, we hope you will take advantage of the
opportunities to enhance your career and further the District�s goals. With your active
involvement, creativity, and support, the District will continue to serve its constituents and
enhance water quality and address flood control. We sincerely hope you will take pride in being
an important part of the District's success.

This Handbook was developed to describe some of the expectations of our employees and to
outline the policies, programs, and benefits available to eligible staff. Employees should
familiarize themselves with the contents of the Employee Handbook as soon as possible, as it
will answer many questions about employment with the District.

The Board has delegated human resources administration to the District Administrator
(�Administrator�). The Administrator will develop, as necessary, all forms, practices,
procedures, and instructions for the proper administration of the Handbook. All employees will
receive a copy of the Handbook as part of the hiring process.

Except where this Handbook explicitly reserves a decision to the Board, or where it would be
contrary to state or federal law, all human resources judgments and decisions on behalf of the
District will be made by the Administrator.

If at any time during your employment you have a question concerning any matter addressed
by this Handbook, you should raise the question with the Administrator. The Administrator will
keep the Board appropriately informed of human resources matters and will be accountable to
the Board with respect to human resources administration.

You also may communicate directly to a Board Manager if you consider a matter sensitive such
that it is problematic to present to the Administrator.

The contents of this Handbook are subject to change from time to time without notice by the
Board. At any time, the Board may revoke, modify, change, and revise the contents of this
Handbook and other policies. Staff will always be informed of any changes and held
accountable to abide by them.

It is the policy of the Board that the Handbook be reviewed by the Board at least every two
years. The most recent revision of this Handbook and its contents supersedes any and all
previous handbooks and policies.

We look forward to your contributions and success in the job. Our future success as a District
and as individuals depends on our mutual respect and cooperation. We want to maintain a
reputation as a customer focused District that strives to achieve excellence in providing
services in the watershed. Let�s do this together!

81



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 6

2.2 ABOUT RICE CREEKWATERSHED DISTRICT

The Rice Creek Watershed District (District) is a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota
established under the Watershed Law. The District is governed by a Board of Managers (Board).
The Board is comprised of five members who are appointed by the county commissioners from
their county of residence (Anoka 2, Ramsey 2, Washington 1) to serve three year terms. The
Board employs a District Administrator and other District staff, and contracts with independent
contractors for engineering, legal, human resources, and financial services to assist the District
in carrying out its statutory purpose and duties. The RCWD mission is to manage, protect, and
improve the water resources of the District through flood control and water quality projects
and programs. As a member of the District staff, you play an important role in helping the
District carry out its statutory purpose and duties.

2.3 EMPLOYMENT ATWILL

Employment at the District is on an at will basis unless otherwise stated in a written individual
employment agreement signed by the president of the District.

This means that either the employee or the District may terminate the employment
relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without notice.

Nothing in this Employee Handbook creates or is intended to create an employment
agreement, express or implied. Nothing contained in this or any other document provided to
the employee is intended to be, nor should it be, construed as a contract that employment or
any benefit will be continued for any period of time. In addition, no District representative is
authorized to modify this policy for any employee or to enter into any agreement, oral or
written that changes the at will relationship.

Nothing in this statement is intended to interfere with, restrain, or prevent concerted activity
as protected by the National Labor Relations Act (NLRA). Such activity includes employee
communications regarding wages, hours, or other terms or conditions of employment. The
District employees have the right to engage in or refrain from such activities.

82



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 7

3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND COMMITMENT TO INCLUSION

3.1 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

In accordance with state and federal law, the District provides equal employment opportunities
to all employees and applicants for employment without regard to race, color, creed, ancestry,
national origin, citizenship, sex or gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, and pregnancy
related conditions), gender identity or expression (including transgender status), sexual
orientation, marital status, religion, age, disability, genetic information, service in the military,
or any other characteristic protected by applicable federal, state, or local laws and ordinances.
Equal employment opportunity applies to all terms and conditions of employment (full time,
part time, temporary and seasonal), including hiring, placement, promotion, termination,
layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training.

The District expressly prohibits any form of unlawful employee harassment or discrimination
based on any of the characteristics mentioned above. Improper interference with the ability of
other employees to perform their expected job duties is absolutely not tolerated.

The District will endeavor to make a reasonable accommodation of an otherwise qualified
applicant or employee related to an individual�s physical or mental disability, sincerely held
religious beliefs and practices, and/or any other reason required by applicable law, unless doing
so would impose an undue hardship upon the District�s business operations.

Any employees with questions or concerns about equal employment opportunities in the
workplace are encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of the Administrator or a
Board Manager. The District will not allow any form of retaliation against individuals who raise
issues of equal employment opportunity. Employees who feel they have been subjected to any
such retaliation should bring it to the attention of the Administrator or a Board Manager.

Retaliation means adverse conduct taken because an individual reported an actual or a
perceived violation of this policy, opposed practices prohibited by this policy, or participated in
the reporting and investigation process described below. �Adverse conduct� includes but is not
limited to:

 Shunning and avoiding an individual who reports harassment, discrimination, or
retaliation;
Express or implied threats or intimidation intended to prevent an individual from
reporting harassment, discrimination, or retaliation; or

 Denying employment benefits because an applicant or employee reported harassment,
discrimination, or retaliation or participated in the reporting and investigation process.

Other examples of retaliation include firing, demotion, denial of promotion, unjustified
negative evaluations, increased surveillance, harassment, and assault.

83



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 8

Complaints of discrimination should be filed according to the procedures described in the
Harassment and Complaint Procedure.

3.2 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) AND REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION

The District is committed to the fair and equal employment of individuals with disabilities under
the ADA. It is the District�s policy to provide reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals
with disabilities unless the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the District.
The District prohibits any harassment of, or discriminatory treatment of, employees or
applicants based on a disability or because an employee has requested a reasonable
accommodation.

In accordance with the ADA, reasonable accommodations will be provided to qualified
individuals with disabilities to enable them to perform the essential functions of their jobs or to
enjoy the equal benefits and privileges of employment. An employee or applicant with a
disability may request an accommodation from the Administrator and should specify what
accommodation is needed to perform the job and submit supporting documentation explaining
the basis for the requested accommodation, to the extent permitted and in accordance with
applicable law. The District then will review and analyze the request, including engaging in an
interactive process with the employee or applicant, to identify if such an accommodation can
be made, or if any other possible accommodations are appropriate. If requested, the employee
is responsible for providing medical documentation regarding the disability and possible
accommodations. All information obtained concerning the medical condition or history of an
applicant or employee will be treated as confidential information, maintained in separate
medical files, and disclosed only as permitted by law.

It is the policy of the District to prohibit harassment or discrimination based on disability or
because an employee has requested a reasonable accommodation. The District prohibits
retaliation against employees for exercising their rights under the ADA or other applicable civil
rights laws. Employees should use the procedures described in the Harassment and Complaint
Procedure to report any harassment, discrimination, or retaliation they have experienced or
witnessed.

3.3 COMMITMENT TO INCLUSION

The District is committed to creating and maintaining a workplace in which all employees have
an opportunity to participate and contribute to the success of the business and are valued for
their skills, experience, and unique perspectives. This commitment is embodied in District policy
and the way we do business at the District and is an important principle of sound business
management.

84



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 9

3.4 HARASSMENT AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

It is the District�s policy to prohibit intentional and unintentional harassment of or against job
applicants, contractors, interns, volunteers, or employees by another employee, supervisor,
customer, or third party based on actual or perceived race, color, creed, religion, national
origin, ancestry, citizenship status, age, sex or gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, and
pregnancy related conditions), gender identity or expression (including transgender status),
sexual orientation, marital status, military service and veteran status, physical or mental
disability, genetic information, or any other characteristic protected by applicable federal,
state, or local laws. The District will not tolerate such conduct.

Furthermore, any retaliation against an individual who has complained about sexual or other
harassment or retaliation against individuals for cooperating with an investigation of a
harassment complaint is similarly unlawful and will not be tolerated. The District will take all
reasonable steps necessary to prevent and eliminate unlawful harassment.

Definition of �unlawful harassment.� �Unlawful harassment� is conduct that has the purpose
or effect of creating an intimidating, a hostile, or an offensive work environment; has the
purpose or effect of substantially and unreasonably interfering with an individual�s work
performance; or otherwise adversely affects an individual�s employment opportunities because
of the individual�s membership in a protected class.

Unlawful harassment includes, but is not limited to, epithets; slurs; jokes; pranks; innuendo;
comments; written or graphic material; stereotyping; or other threatening, hostile, or
intimidating acts based on race, color, ancestry, national origin, gender, sex, sexual orientation,
marital status, religion, age, disability, veteran status, or another characteristic protected by
state or federal law.

Definition of �sexual harassment.�While all forms of harassment are prohibited, special
attention should be paid to sexual harassment. �Sexual harassment� can include all of the
above actions, as well as other unwelcome conduct, and is generally defined under both state
and federal law as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature whereby:

 Submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term
or condition of any individual�s employment or as a basis for employment decisions.

 Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual�s
work performance or creating an intimidating, a hostile, or an offensive work
environment.

Other sexually oriented conduct, whether intended or not, that is unwelcome and has the
effect of creating a work environment that is hostile, offensive, intimidating, or humiliating to
workers may also constitute sexual harassment.

85



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 10

While it is not possible to list all those additional circumstances that may constitute sexual
harassment, the following are some examples of conduct that, if unwelcome, may constitute
sexual harassment depending on the totality of the circumstances, including the severity of the
conduct and its pervasiveness:

 Unwanted sexual advances, whether they involve physical touching or not;
 Sexual epithets; jokes; written or oral references to sexual conduct; gossip regarding

one�s sex life; comments about an individual�s body; and comments about an
individual�s sexual activity, deficiencies, or prowess;

 Displaying sexually suggestive objects, pictures, or cartoons;
 Unwelcome leering, whistling, brushing up against the body, sexual gestures, or

suggestive or insulting comments;
 Inquiries into one�s sexual experiences; and
 Discussion of one�s sexual activities.

All employees should take special note that, as stated above, retaliation against an individual
who has complained about sexual or other harassment and retaliation against individuals for
cooperating with an investigation of sexual or other harassment complaints violate the
District�s policy.

The District expects that each of its employees will treat alleged violations responsibly and
confidentially.

Complaint procedure. If you believe you have been subject to or have witnessed unlawful
discrimination, including sexual or other forms of unlawful harassment, or other inappropriate
conduct, as soon as possible following the occurrence, deal with the problem in any one of the
following ways:

1) Tell the person specifically what behavior is unwanted and tell him/her to stop at
once. This helps identify a clear understanding of expected future behavior. After you
have addressed the problem, document what was said and what understanding was
reached. Sufficient detail as to time, place and actions allows for accurate reporting. (An
employee who is not comfortable discussing the matter with the offending person may
contact the Administrator or Board President for counsel and assistance.)

2) If the unwanted behavior does not stop after your complaint, or if you do not feel
comfortable confronting the person, or if the harassment is an incident of a very serious
nature, report it immediately to the Administrator. If the Administrator is the source of
the alleged harassment, report it to the Board President, or if you feel that the
Administrator has not responded appropriately, then make an additional report to the
Board President. Specific details of the harassing or offensive behavior should be
provided.

All complaints will be investigated promptly, and confidentiality will be protected to the extent
possible. A timely resolution of each complaint should be reached and communicated to the
parties involved.

86



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 11

If the investigation confirms conduct that violates this policy has occurred, the District will take
immediate, appropriate, corrective action, including discipline, up to and including immediate
termination. No reprisal, retaliation, or other adverse action will be taken against an employee
for making a complaint or report of discrimination or harassment or for assisting in the
investigation of any such complaint or report. Any suspected retaliation or intimidation should
be reported immediately to one of the persons identified above.

87



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 12

4 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND CONFIDENTIALITY

4.1 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The District expects all employees to conduct themselves and District business in a manner that
reflects the highest standards of ethical conduct and in accordance with all federal, state, and
local laws and regulations. This includes avoiding real and potential conflicts of interests.

Exactly what constitutes a conflict of interest or an unethical business practice is both a moral
and a legal question. The District recognizes and respects the individual employee�s right to
engage in activities outside of employment that are private in nature and do not in any way
conflict with or reflect poorly on the District.

If a situation arises in which there is a potential conflict of interest, the employee should discuss
this with the Administrator for advice and guidance on how to proceed. The list below suggests
some of the types of activities that indicate improper behavior, unacceptable personal integrity,
or unacceptable ethics:

 Simultaneous employment by another organization that is a competitor of or supplier
to the District;

 Carrying on District business with an organization in which the employee, or a close
relative of the employee, has a substantial ownership or interest;

 Any outside activity which may interfere with the operation of the District;
 Misusing privileged information or revealing confidential data to outsiders;
 Using one�s position in the District or knowledge of its affairs for personal gains; and
 Engaging in practices or procedures that violate antitrust laws, commercial bribery

laws, copyright laws, discrimination laws, campaign contribution laws, or other laws
regulating the conduct of District business.

Employees must obtain prior approval from the Administrator, or in the case of the
Administrator, from the Board, before engaging in any other employment that may constitute a
conflict of interest.

Employees who know of a violation or potential violation of this policy are expected to report it
to the Administrator or Board President.

4.2 CONFIDENTIALITY

As a trusted employee of the District, you will have access to confidential information. This
applies to confidential information in any format, whether oral, written, electronic or other
media.

Confidential information is any and all information disclosed to or known by you because of
employment with the District that is not generally known to people outside the District about

88



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 13

its business. The protection of such information is vital to the interests and success of the
District.

Information may be relating to such matters as the District's employee and compensation data;
organizational procedures; manuals; contracts; accounting and bookkeeping practices; office
policies and practices; financial information; records and reports; business plans, general and
specific; litigation; materials subject to attorney/client privilege; data classified private or non
public by the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.

You will be expected to protect the confidentiality of such information during the course of
your work and not discuss it with relatives, acquaintances or other members of the public.

If you have a question about the confidentiality of certain information, check with the
Administrator. Employees who know of a violation or potential violation of this policy are
expected to report it to the Administrator or Board President.

An employee who improperly uses or discloses confidential information will be subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment and legal action, even if the
employee does not actually benefit from the disclosed information.

89



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 14

5 EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP

5.1 EMPLOYEE PRIVACY

It is the District�s goal to respect the individual privacy of its employees and at the same time
maintain a safe and secure workplace. When issues of safety and security arise, you may be
requested to cooperate with an investigation. The investigation may include procedures to
safeguard the District and its employees, such as searches of personal belongings. Failure to
cooperate with an investigation is grounds for termination. Providing false information during
any investigation may lead to discipline, including termination.

Employees are expected to make use of District facilities and equipment only for the business
purposes of the District. Accordingly, materials that appear on District hardware or networks
are presumed to be for business purposes, and all such materials are subject to review by the
District at any time without notice to the employees. Employees do not have any expectation of
privacy with respect to any material on District property. The District may monitor its
communications systems and networks as allowed by law. Monitored activity may include
voice, e mail, and text communications, as well as Internet search and browsing history.
Employees who make excessive use of the communications system for personal matters are
subject to discipline. Employees are expected to keep personal communication to a minimum
and to emergency situations.

Video surveillance. As part of its security measures and to help ensure a safe workplace, the
District may position video cameras to monitor various areas of its facilities. Video cameras will
not be used in private areas, such as break rooms, restrooms, locker/dressing rooms, etc.
Videotapes will not include an audio component.

5.2 EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFICATION

Written job descriptions will be prepared for all District employment positions. The descriptions
will consist of a title, a description of the responsibilities and typical examples of work
performed, and other information on the required qualifications and abilities necessary to
perform the duties of the position. Job descriptions should be reviewed annually between the
employee and the supervisor, and adjustments made as needed.

All employee positions will be classified pursuant to applicable Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)
as either Non Exempt (employees who are entitled to overtime compensation) or Exempt
(employees who are not entitled to overtime compensation.)

In order to determine eligibility for benefits and overtime status and to ensure compliance with
federal and state laws and regulations, the District classifies its employees as shown below. The
District may review or change employee classifications at any time.

Exempt. Exempt employees are typically paid on a salary basis and are not eligible to receive
overtime pay.

90



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 15

Nonexempt. Nonexempt employees are paid on an hourly basis and are eligible to receive
overtime pay for overtime hours worked.

Regular, full time. Employees who are not in a temporary status and work a minimum of 40
hours weekly and maintain continuous employment status. Generally, these employees are
eligible for the full time benefits package and are subject to the terms, conditions, and
limitations of each benefits program.

Regular, part time. Employees who are not in a temporary status and who are regularly
scheduled to work less than 40 hours weekly and who maintain continuous employment status.
Part time employees are eligible for some of the benefits offered by the District and are subject
to the terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefits program.

Temporary, full time. Employees who are hired as interim replacements to temporarily
supplement the workforce or to assist in the completion of a specific project and who are
temporarily scheduled to work the District�s full time schedule for a limited duration.
Employment beyond any initially stated period does not in any way imply a change in
employment status. These employees are not eligible for the full time benefits package.

Temporary, part time. Employees who are hired as interim replacements to temporarily
supplement the workforce or to assist in the completion of a specific project and who are
temporarily scheduled to work less than 40 hours weekly for a limited duration. Employment
beyond any initially stated period does not in any way imply a change in employment status.
These employees are not eligible for the full time benefits package.

5.3 WORKWEEK AND HOURS OFWORK

The standard workweek is from Sunday 12:00 a.m. until Saturday 11:59 p.m. and generally
consists of 40 work hours. Office hours are 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
Individual work schedules may vary depending on the needs of each department, including
occasional evening and weekend work. Employees are required to work according to the
schedule for their assigned position. Working more than 40 hours in a week may occasionally
be required to meet deadlines or to accomplish objectives. Nonexempt employees will receive
overtime pay at 1.5 times their hourly rate.

Meals and Rest Breaks. Employees are entitled to a 30 minute unpaid meal break each day.
Any nonexempt employee who is required to work through a meal break will be paid for the 30
minute period. Employees are also entitled to two 15 minute rest periods each day.

5.4 TIME RECORDS

All nonexempt employees are required to complete accurate weekly time reports showing all
time actually worked, and other time that comprises a 40 hour workweek. These records are
required by governmental regulations and are used to calculate regular and overtime pay. At
the end of each week, you and your supervisor must sign the time sheet attesting to its
correctness before forwarding it to the Administrator within the designated time.

91



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 16

Exempt employees shall also log their time for purposes of tracking expenses for various work
activities and for tracking accrued leave and flex time.

5.5 OVERTIME

When required due to the needs of the business, you may be asked to work overtime. Overtime
is actual hours worked in excess of 40 in a single workweek. Nonexempt employees will be paid
overtime compensation at the rate of one and one half their regular rate of pay for all hours
over 40 actually worked in a single workweek. Paid leave, such as holiday, vacation, sick time,
bereavement time, and jury duty, does not apply toward work time. All overtime work must be
approved in advance by a supervisor.

5.6 FLEX TIME

Exempt employees may accumulate flex time for any work time beyond a 40 hour workweek.
For purposes of calculating flex time, holidays, vacation and personal leave days do not count;
only hours actually worked will be used in the calculation. The supervisor is expected to work
with employees, within reason, so that flex time accumulated in a timesheet pay period is used
within the following timesheet pay period. There is no carryover beyond that timeframe, and
flex time will be zeroed out, as it is not intended to be a stockpile alternative leave. If
unforeseen circumstances prohibit the use of accrued flex time, it must be approved by the
Administrator to be used at a later time. Flex time is not to be used during �in office� days.
Furthermore, upon giving notice of termination, any accrued flex time will be zeroed out.

If flex time becomes routine for any employee, the Administrator needs to be notified to ensure
a balance of work.

Neither the Administrator nor supervisors are eligible to accumulate flex time.

5.7 DEDUCTIONS FROM PAY/SAFE HARBOR EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

The District does not make improper deductions from the salaries of exempt employees and
complies with the salary basis requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). Employees
classified as exempt from the overtime pay requirements of the FLSA will be notified of this
classification at the time of hire or change in position.

Permitted deductions. The FLSA limits the types of deductions that may be made from the pay
of an exempt employee. Deductions that are permitted include:

� Deductions that are required by law, e.g., income taxes;
� SDI (State Disability Insurance);
� Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA);
� Court ordered garnishments;
� Deductions for employee benefits when authorized by the employee;
� Absence from work for one or more full days for personal reasons other than

sickness or disability;

92



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 17

� Absence from work for one or more full days due to sickness or disability if the
deduction is made in accordance with a bona fide plan, policy, or practice of
providing compensation for salary lost due to illness;

� Offset for military pay;
� Unpaid disciplinary suspensions of one or more full days imposed in good faith for

workplace conduct rule infractions; and
� Any full workweek in which the employee does not perform any work.

During the week an exempt employee begins work for the District or during the last week of
employment, the employee will only be paid for actual hours worked. In addition, an employee
may be paid only for hours worked during a period when the employee is using unpaid leave
under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

Improper deductions. If an employee classified as exempt believes that an improper deduction
has been taken from the employee�s pay, the employee should immediately report the
deduction to the Administrator. The report will be promptly investigated, and if it is found that
an improper deduction has been made, the District will reimburse the employee for the
improper deduction.

5.8 PAYCHECKS

The District�s pay period for all employees is twice monthly on the 15th day and the last day of
the month. For exempt employees, the paycheck will include hours worked in the previous pay
period up to the payday. For nonexempt employees, the paycheck will have a lag of 2 3 weeks.
If a payday falls on a federal holiday, employees will receive their paycheck on the preceding
workday. Paychecks are directly deposited into your checking and/or savings accounts.

5.9 EXPENSES
The District will reimburse employees for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in the
performance of his/her duties. This includes reimbursement for mileage when using a personal
vehicle on District business. The rate used is that which is specified by the Internal Revenue
Service for mileage allowance at the time the expense occurs. The employee must provide the
Administrator with proof of mileage and other expenses to receive reimbursement.

5.10 SALARY ADMINISTRATION

The District encourages continual improvement in performance and the ongoing development
of ability in each employee through a sound, well administered salary and performance review
program.

Effective Salary Administration is to establish and maintain salary structures that will enable the
District to attract and retain qualified and competent personnel essential to function effectively
and achieve its stated objectives for quality, consistent service.

The District seeks to follow the principle of equal pay for equal work and maintain salary
relationships among positions within the organization, which are internally consistent in

93



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 18

recognizing significant differences in position responsibilities and requirements, and in
compliance with applicable government requirements and regulations.

The District will generally compensate employees based on the District and general economic
conditions, competitive market practices, employee performance, and staff development. All
salary actions must be approved by the Administrator.

5.11 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Employees are encouraged to continue to develop their competencies and strengthen their
skillsets to better serve in their current and potential future roles within the District.

Reimbursements. All regular, full time employees may be eligible for educational assistance
after completing 120 days of employment. To qualify, course must be taken from an accredited
educational institution and the employee must receive a passing grade of �C� or better (when
grades are assigned) or equivalent. The courses taken should relate to the employee�s present
job or provide additional training to help the employee prepare for a future position within the
District.

To apply for educational assistance beyond that required by the District to maintain mandatory
skill levels, the employee is to first discuss the proposed course with the Administrator who will
help determine whether reimbursement is applicable. The employee must then submit a
written request prior to registering for the course. The Administrator must approve the course
and forward it the Board of Managers for final approval.

Once the request is approved, the employee should register for the course and pay for the
tuition and fees. To receive reimbursement, the employee must provide the District with tuition
receipts and evidence of satisfactory course completion (C grade or better) within 60 days after
the course is completed.

An annual limit per calendar year per employee is at the discretion of the District. Termination
of employment, for any reason, prior to course completion, will make the employee ineligible
for reimbursement.

Memberships. The District will support active memberships of employees in those business and
professional organizations that serve to strengthen the District's ability to conduct its business
or maintain its image in the community. Leadership in such organizations and serving on
committees is supported.

Memberships will be provided to those employees having key functional responsibilities that
require these memberships. Payments by the District are limited to initiation fees, annual dues,
and the cost of a lunch or dinner in connection with local meetings. Approval must be received
from the District Administrator, and funds included in the District�s annual budget, before the
District pays fees and travel expenses to out of town conferences.

94



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 19

5.12 PERSONNEL FILES

You are responsible for providing the District with current personal contact information (name,
address, phone number, e mail), required tax data (number of dependents, income tax
withholding), insurance beneficiaries and emergency contacts, and other information which
may affect your employee status. As your personal contact information changes, please inform
the Administrator.

Your personnel file will include the following information: applications for employment,
employment agreements, wage and salary history, any notices of commendation, warning,
discipline, or termination, any authorization for a deduction from your pay, fringe benefit
information, leave records, and District employment history including compensation, positions
held, promotions and transfers, and performance evaluations.

Personnel files are maintained by the Administrator and are considered confidential.
Supervisors may only have access to personnel file information on a need to know basis.
Employees may review their own personnel files and may copy them but may not remove
documents from their file. Inspections by employees must be requested in writing to the
Administrator and will be scheduled at a mutually convenient time or as required under state
law. Personnel files are to be reviewed in the District offices. Representatives of government or
law enforcement agencies, in the course of their duties, may be allowed access to file
information.

If you are contacted as a reference for a current or past employee, refer that person to the
Administrator. Only the Administrator or Board (in the case of the Administrator) is authorized
to provide reference checks or make recommendations in response to questions about current
or former employees.

5.13 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND DOMESTIC PARTNERS

Relatives and domestic partners may be hired by the District if (1) the persons concerned will
not work in a direct supervisory relationship, and (2) the employment will not pose difficulties
for supervision, security, safety, or morale. For the purposes of this policy, �relatives� are
defined as spouses, children, siblings, parents, or grandparents. A �domestic partnership� is
generally defined as a committed relationship between two individuals who are sharing a home
or living arrangements.

Current employees who marry each other or become involved in a domestic partnership will be
permitted to continue employment with the District provided they don�t work in a direct
supervisory relationship with each other or otherwise pose difficulties as mentioned above. If
employees who marry or live together do work in a direct supervisory relationship with each
other, the District will attempt to reassign one of the employees to another position for which
the employee is qualified if such a position is available. If no such position is available, the
employees will be permitted to determine which one of them will resign from the District.

95



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 20

5.14 SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

In all cases of voluntary resignation (one initiated by the employee), employees are asked to
provide a written notice to their supervisors at least 10 working days in advance of the last day
of work. The 10 days must be actual working days. Holidays and vacation will not be counted
toward the 10 day notice. For supervisors, a written notice must be provided at least 20
working days in advance of the last day of work.

Employees who provide the requested amount of notice will be considered to have resigned in
good standing and generally will be eligible for rehire, and eligible for any vacation balance
payout.

In most cases, an exit meeting on or before the last day of employment will be conducted to
collect all District property, and discuss final pay, among other topics. If applicable, information
regarding benefits continuation through the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act
(COBRA) will be sent to the employee�s home address.

Should it become necessary because of business conditions to reduce the number of employees
or work hours, this will be done at the discretion of the District.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 21

6 WORKPLACE SAFETY

6.1 COMMITMENT TO SAFETY

Protecting the safety of our employees, volunteers and visitors is the most important aspect of
carrying out our business.

All employees have the opportunity and responsibility to contribute to a safe work environment
by using commonsense rules and safe practices and by notifying management when any health
or safety issues are present. All employees are encouraged to partner with management to
ensure maximum safety for all.

In the event of an emergency, call the appropriate emergency personnel at 911 to activate the
medical emergency services.

Any workplace injury, accident, or illness must be reported to the Administrator as soon as
possible, regardless of the severity of the injury or accident. A First Report of Injury form for the
Worker�s Compensation Insurance of the District will be completed. Compensation for a work
related injury or illness shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the workers�
compensation program. Proper notification must be given to the Administrator of the expected
duration of all such absences. You will be required to provide a release from a physician upon
your return to work. The District reserves the right to require you to be seen by a physician of
its choice.

6.2 DRUG FREE AND ALCOHOL FREEWORKPLACE

It is the policy of the District to maintain a drug and alcohol free work environment that is safe
and productive for employees and others having business with the District.

The unlawful use, possession, purchase, sale, or distribution of or being under the influence of
any illegal drug or controlled substance (including medical marijuana) while on District or client
premises or while performing services for the District is strictly prohibited. The District also
prohibits reporting to work or performing services under the influence of alcohol or consuming
alcohol while on duty or during work hours. In addition, the District prohibits off premises
abuse of alcohol and controlled substances (including medical marijuana), as well as the
possession, use, or sale of illegal drugs, when these activities adversely affect job performance,
job safety, or the District�s reputation in the community.

To ensure compliance with this policy, substance abuse screening may be conducted in the
following situations:

 Pre employment: as required by the District for all prospective employees who
receive a conditional offer of employment;

 For cause: upon reasonable suspicion that the employee is under the influence
of alcohol or drugs that could affect or have adversely affected the employee�s
job performance; or
Random: as authorized or required by federal or state law.

97



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 22

Compliance with this policy may be a condition of employment. Employees who test positive or
who refuse to submit to substance abuse screening may be subject to termination.
Notwithstanding any provision herein, this policy will be enforced at all times in accordance
with applicable state and local law.

Any employee violating this policy is subject to discipline, up to and including termination, for
the first offense.

6.3 SMOKE FREEWORKPLACE

Smoking is not allowed in District buildings or work areas at any time. �Smoking� includes the
use of any tobacco products (including chewing tobacco), electronic smoking devices, and e
cigarettes.

Smoking is only permitted during break times in designated outdoor areas. Employees using
these areas are expected to dispose of any smoking debris safely and properly.

6.4 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION

The District is committed to providing a safe, violence free workplace for our employees. Due
to this commitment, we discourage employees from engaging in any physical confrontation
with a violent or potentially violent individual or from behaving in a threatening or violent
manner. Threats, threatening language, or any other acts of aggression or violence made
toward or by any employee will not be tolerated. A threat may include any verbal or physical
harassment or abuse; attempts to intimidate others; menacing gestures; stalking; or any other
hostile, aggressive, and/or destructive actions taken for the purposes of intimidation. This
policy covers any violent or potentially violent behavior that occurs in the workplace or at
District sponsored functions.

All District employees bear the responsibility of keeping our work environment free from
violence or potential violence. Any employee who witnesses or is the recipient of violent
behavior should promptly inform the supervisor or Administrator. All threats will be promptly
investigated. No employee will be subject to retaliation, intimidation, or discipline as a result of
reporting a threat in good faith under this guideline.

Any individual engaging in violence against the District, its employees, or its property will be
prosecuted to the full extent of the law. All acts will be investigated, and the appropriate action
will be taken. Any such act or threatening behavior may result in disciplinary action up to and
including termination.

The District prohibits the possession of weapons on its property at all times, including our
parking lots or District vehicles. Additionally, while on duty, employees may not carry a weapon
of any type. Weapons include, but are not limited to, handguns, rifles, automatic weapons,
knives that can be used as weapons (excluding pocket knives, utility knives, and other
instruments that are used to open packages or cut string and for other miscellaneous tasks),
and martial arts paraphernalia. Stun guns and other self protection tools need to be reported

98



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 23

and approved with just cause by the Administrator. Any employee violating this policy is subject
to discipline up to and including dismissal.

The District reserves the right to inspect all belongings of employees on its premises, including
packages, briefcases, purses and handbags, gym bags, and personal vehicles on District
property.

6.5 VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT USE AND SAFETY

Due to the nature of work performed by the District, a variety of motorized vehicles and
specialized equipment are utilized in accomplishing job duties. Use of District vehicles or
equipment for personal reasons is prohibited unless approved by the Administrator. Where
required, employees must receive licenses/ certifications needed to operate equipment or
drive vehicles. Employees must submit annual proof of a valid drivers license; periodic reviews
may be done to ensure compliance. In all situations, appropriate safety gear must be worn
while operating equipment and vehicles, which will be provided by the District.

Employees who operate RCWD vehicles are required to report to the Administrator any driving
violations or driving under the influence (DUI) violations as soon as possible. Consequences for
incurring these violations may result in the loss of the ability to utilize a RCWD vehicle.

Routine maintenance of all District vehicles and equipment will be scheduled by the designated
employee assigned for maintenance. Employees must notify the administrator if any vehicle or
equipment appears to be damaged, defective, or in need of repair or maintenance.

Vehicles. Safe driving is top priority when operating a vehicle while driving for District business.
Your first responsibility is to pay attention to your driving. Never allow a cell phone or other
mobile device to distract you from concentrating on driving.

Under no circumstances should you feel that you need to place yourself or others at risk while
driving to fulfill business needs. Do not use your cell phone as a hand held device; avoid using
altogether. Find a safe place to pull over to make or receive phone calls, send or receive text
messages, or manipulate navigation apps.

Only District employees are permitted to drive District owned or leased vehicles. Non business
related passengers are not allowed to ride in/on District vehicles unless required to accomplish
District job duties.

All vehicles will be equipped with first aid kits and emergency equipment including fire
extinguishers as appropriate for the vehicle.

Employees are responsible for any fines related to moving, parking or any other violations
incurred as a result of employee misconduct. The District will not reimburse for such fines.

It is the responsibility of the operator to ensure District vehicles are returned with proper
equipment and in the same condition as when they were taken. It is also the operator�s
responsibility to verify equipment that is taken out of the vehicle is returned to the vehicle.

If a vehicle accident occurs, the employee is to take the appropriate steps in filing a police

99



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 24

report and report it immediately to the Administrator.

Employees who fail to follow safety guidelines are subject to discipline.

Equipment. Employees who use District property or equipment are responsible to protect it
from being lost, damaged, or stolen. If District owned property or equipment is lost, damaged,
or stolen because of willful negligence or disregard, the employee will pay the District an
amount equal to the replacement or repair cost of the property or equipment, or the amount
of the insurance deductible if the loss is covered by insurance. Disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment may also occur in this situation.

All District property must be returned after usage and/or upon termination of employment. The
employee is responsible for payment of the value of any property issued by the District that is
not returned, unless authorized by the Administrator. The District assumes no responsibility for
loss or damage to the personal property of an employee unless use of said property is required
by the District.

6.6 EMERGENCY CLOSINGS

The Administrator or Board President is authorized to adjust office operations, schedule or
closure for all health and safety situations to suit the community level of risk guidance issued by
the Centers for Disease Control and/or Prevention and Minnesota Department of Health,
weather, or any other condition that threatens employee health or safety.

It is the responsibility of the employee to contact the Administrator to find out whether the
workplace has been declared officially closed for all or part of the day. If an employee is unable
to get to work, and the workplace is open, the time missed will be considered paid personal
leave time off if earned, or unpaid leave if there is no earned leave accumulated.

The District will always make every attempt to be open for business. In situations in which some
employees are concerned about their safety the Administrator may advise staff that the office
is not officially closed, but employees may choose to leave the office if they feel uncomfortable.

If the office is officially closed during the course of the day to permit employees to leave early,
nonexempt employees who are working on site as of the time of the closing will be paid for a
full day. If you leave earlier than the official closing time, you will be paid only for actual hours
worked, or you can take personal or vacation time. Exempt employees will be paid for a normal
full day but are expected to complete their work at another time.

 

 

100



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 25

7 WORKPLACE GUIDELINES

7.1 ATTENDANCE

All employees are expected to arrive on time, ready to work, every day they are scheduled to
work.

If unable to arrive at work on time, or if an employee will be absent for an entire day, the
employee must contact the supervisor as soon as possible. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness
will result in discipline up to and including termination. Failure to show up or call in for a
scheduled shift without prior approval also may result in discipline up to and including
termination. If an employee fails to report to work or call in to inform the supervisor of the
absence for three consecutive days or more, the employee will be considered to have
voluntarily resigned employment.

7.2 TELEWORK

A hybrid working arrangement began in May 2022 and has an indefinite timeline. It combines
the intentional and informal collaboration and communication benefits of in person work with
the flexibility and focus time provided by telework. This allows an employee to choose to
perform work on a scheduled, recurring basis at a location that is not the permanent/principal
work site provided by the employer. It is not a condition of employment, but an optional
workplace arrangement.

Employees must have a dedicated and functioning workspace for telework. Adequate and
secure internet connectivity is a necessary component of a telework arrangement, and is at the
employee�s expense.

Non telework includes time at the District office, field site visits, off site trainings, and meetings
in other locations, such as a local government office.

As District needs and individual position duties allow, employees may telework up to 60% of
each workweek. Employees are expected as necessary to come to the office/field sites on their
telework day to accomplish District needs via in person meetings, trainings, field work,
landowner contacts, etc. Employees should expect to have weeks where telework time is less
than the maximum amount allowed.

There is no maximum to the amount of time employees may work in the office and there is not
an expectation that staff should telework. Telework time will be scheduled on specific days that
will ensure for adequate coverage in the office by other staff. Flex time is not to be used on
scheduled office hours; furthermore, avoid taking personal time on scheduled office days.

Time within the telework day(s) may be flexed (e.g. later start time to account for an evening
meeting).

101



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 26

7.3 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

Employees generally are permitted to work a second job as long as it does not interfere with
their job performance or create a conflict of interest with the District. All employees, including
part time employees, must obtain prior approval from the Administrator before undertaking
any outside employment or other work activity.

Employees with a second job are expected to work their assigned schedules. A second job will
not be considered an excuse for poor job performance, absenteeism, tardiness, leaving early,
refusal to travel, or refusal to work overtime or different hours. In addition, employees who
have accepted outside employment may not use paid sick time to work on the outside job.
However, an employee on a leave of absence may continue to work in the outside job if the
District under this policy has approved this employment and the employee�s reason for leave
does not preclude the outside employment.

If outside work activity causes or contributes to job related problems, it must be discontinued,
or the employee may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

7.4 DRESS AND GROOMING

The District provides a casual yet professional work environment for its employees. Even
though the dress code is casual, it is important to project a professional image to our
communities, visitors, and coworkers. All employees are expected to dress in a manner
consistent with good hygiene, safety, and professional taste. This includes no halter tops,
spaghetti strapped tops, muscle shirts or inappropriate length of shorts. Please use common
sense.

Certain employees may be required to meet special dress and grooming, such as wearing
uniforms or safety equipment/clothing, depending on the nature of their job. Personal
protective equipment (PPE) shall be reviewed annually by the Administrator to meet OSHA and
MNDOT standards to ensure safety of all staff. Any questions or complaints regarding the
appropriateness of attire should be directed to the Administrator, where decisions regarding
attire will be made.

7.5 SOCIALMEDIA ACCEPTABLE USE

The District encourages employees to share information with coworkers and with those outside
the District for the purposes of gathering information, generating new ideas, and learning from
the work of others. Social media provides inexpensive, informal, and timely ways to participate
in an exchange of ideas and information. However, information posted on a website is available
to the public, and therefore, the District has established the following guidelines for employee
participation in social media.
Note: As used in this policy, �social media� refers to blogs, forums, and social networking sites,
such as Twitter, Facebook, LinkedIn, YouTube, Instagram, and Snapchat, among others.

102



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 27

Off duty use of social media. Employees may maintain personal websites or weblogs on their
own time using their own facilities and equipment. Employees must ensure that social media
activity does not interfere with their work. In general, the District considers social media
activities to be personal endeavors, and employees may use them to express their thoughts or
promote their ideas. In addition, employees may not post on a personal blog or webpage or
participate on a social networking platform for personal purposes during work time or at any
time with the District equipment or property.

On duty use of social media. Employees may engage in social media activity during work time
provided it is directly related to their work and approved by their supervisor and does not
identify or reference District stakeholders without express permission. The District may monitor
employee use of District computers and the Internet, including employee blogging and social
networking activity.

Respect. Demonstrate respect. A social media site is a public place, and employees should
avoid inappropriate comments. Similarly, employees should not engage in harassing or
discriminatory behavior that targets other employees or individuals because of their protected
class status or make defamatory comments or engage in other behavior that violates the
District�s policies.

Post disclaimers. Employees who identify themselves as District employees or discuss matters
related to the District on a social media site must include a disclaimer on the front page stating
that it does not express the views of the District and that the employees are expressing only
personal views�for example: �The views expressed on this website/Weblog are mine alone
and do not necessarily reflect the views of my employer.� Place the disclaimer in a prominent
position, and repeat it for each posting expressing an opinion related to the District or the
District�s business. Employees must keep in mind that if they post information on a social media
site that is in violation of District policy and/or federal, state, or local law, the disclaimer will not
shield them from disciplinary action.

Competition. Employees should not use social media to criticize the District�s competition and
should not use it to compete with the District.

Confidentiality. Do not identify or reference District business without express permission.
Employees may write about their jobs in general but may not disclose any confidential or
proprietary information. For examples of confidential information, please refer to the
confidentiality policy. When in doubt, ask before publishing.

Trademarks and copyrights. Do not use the District�s or others� trademarks on a social media
site or reproduce the District�s or others� material without first obtaining permission.

Legal. Employees are expected to comply with all applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
copyright, trademark, and harassment laws.

Discipline. Violations of this policy may result in discipline up to and including immediate
termination of employment.

103



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 28

7.6 BULLETIN BOARDS

The District will maintain a bulletin board in the break area to communicate employment
announcements and other pertinent material for your review. All required governmental
postings are posted on the boards located in the break area. These boards may also contain
general announcements.

Employees may submit to the Administrator notices of general interest, such as for sale notices;
recreational type announcements and/or club functions (e mail should not be used for the
aforementioned); postcards; expressions of gratitude or sympathy; and notices looking
for/offering carpools, tickets, roommates, or pets. The District reserves the right to refuse
permission to post or to take down any announcement.

7.7 SOLICITATION

Employees should be able to work in an environment that is free from unnecessary annoyances
and interference with their work. In order to protect our employees and visitors, solicitation by
employees is strictly prohibited while either the employee being solicited or the employee
doing the soliciting is on �working time.� �Working time� is defined as time during which an
employee is not at a meal, on break, or on the premises immediately before or after a shift.

Employees are also prohibited from distributing written materials, handbills, or any other type
of literature on working time and, at all times, in �working areas,� which include all office areas.
�Working areas� do not include break rooms, parking lots, or common areas shared by
employees during nonworking time.

7.8 COMPUTERS, INTERNET, E MAIL, AND OTHER RESOURCES

The District provides a wide variety of communication tools and resources to employees for use
in running day to day business activities. Whether it is the telephone, voicemail, scanner,
Internet, intranet, e mail, text messaging, portable electronic devices, or any other District
provided technology, use should be reserved for business related matters during working
hours. All communication using these tools should be handled in a professional and respectful
manner.

Employees should not have any expectation of privacy in their use of District computer, phone,
portable electronic devices, or other communication tools. All communications made using
District provided equipment or services, including e mail and Internet activity, are subject to
inspection by the District. Employees should keep in mind that even if they delete an e mail, a
voicemail, or another communication, a copy may be archived on the District�s systems.

Employee use of District provided communication systems, including personal e mail and
Internet use, that is not job related has the potential to drain, rather than enhance,
productivity and system performance. You should also be aware that information transmitted
through e email and the Internet is not completely secure or may contain viruses or malware,
and information you transmit and receive could damage the District�s systems, as well as the
reputation and/or competitiveness of the District. To protect against possible problems, delete

104



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 29

any e mail messages before opening that are received from unknown senders and advertisers.
It also is against District policy to turn off antivirus protection software or make unauthorized
changes to system configurations installed on District computers. Violations of this policy may
result in termination.

The District encourages employees to use e mail only to communicate with fellow employees,
or others regarding District business. Internal and external e mails are considered business
records and may be subject to federal and state recordkeeping requirements, as well as to
discovery in the event of litigation. Be aware of this possibility when sending e mails within and
outside the District.

All use of District provided communications systems, including e mail and Internet use, should
conform to our District guidelines/policies, including but not limited to the Equal Opportunity,
Harassment, Confidential Information, and Conflicts of Interest. So, for example, employees
should not engage in harassing or discriminatory behavior that targets other employees or
individuals because of their protected class status or make defamatory comments. Similarly,
employees should not divulge confidential information such as trade secrets, client lists, or
information restricted from disclosure by law on social media sites.

Because e mail, telephone and voicemail, and Internet communication equipment are provided
for District business purposes and are critical to the District�s success, your communications
may be accessed without further notice by IT department administrators and District
management to ensure compliance with this guideline.

The electronic communication systems are not secure and may allow inadvertent disclosure,
accidental transmission to third parties, etc. Sensitive information should not be sent via
unsecured electronic means.

Employees should pay particular care to the use and security of portable electronic devices
when used for business related purposes, such as laptops, tablets, smartphones, and other data
storage media, whether provided by the employer or the employee. Lost or stolen portable
electronic devices containing District information may cause breaches of security that result in
the loss of District confidential commercial data, the loss of vital research data, the
unauthorized disclosure of sensitive employee data, lawsuits against the individual, and
lawsuits against the District. Employees should use appropriate password protections for such
devices and physically secure them as recommended by the Administrator.

Nothing in this policy is meant to, nor should it be interpreted to, in any way limit your rights
under any applicable federal, state, or local laws, including your rights under the NLRA to
engage in protected concerted activities with other employees to improve or discuss terms and
conditions of employment, such as wages, working conditions, and benefits. Employees have
the right to engage in or refrain from such activities.

105



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 30

7.9 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

Communication between employees and supervisors is very important. Discussions regarding
job performance are ongoing and often informal. Employees should initiate conversations with
their supervisors if they feel additional ongoing feedback is needed.

While evaluating performance is both an informal and formal process, generally, formal
performance reviews are conducted annually. These reviews include a written performance
appraisal and discussion between the employee and the supervisor about job performance and
expectations for the coming year. If an employee�s performance needs improvement, the
Disciplinary Procedure will be implemented.

The District identifies a learning period for all new positions to be six months. The learning
period will apply to all new employees and all existing employees who are transferred or
promoted to a new position. An evaluation of your performance will be conducted at the end of
the learning period which may result in confirmation of your fitness for the position, dismissal,
or reclassification/transfer back to your original position. The six month review is not
considered a salary review, unless specifically agreed to in writing at time of hire or unless the
six month review coincides with the annual review cycle.

The Administrator or Board (in the case of the Administrator) will conduct a formal written
performance appraisal at the end of the calendar year for all employees. Copies of the written
appraisal will be provided to the employee with the opportunity for him or her to provide
written comments. The appraisal process is intended to be a two way discussion between the
supervisor and employee on any issues or concerns related to job performance.

At the discretion of the Administrator or Board, interim performance appraisals may be
scheduled (for example six months prior to the end of the year review) to address any
potential concerns early and allow employees to take actions to improve upon their
performance and success in doing the job.

7.10 DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

The District expects employees to comply with the District�s standards of behavior and
performance and to correct any noncompliance with these standards.

Under normal circumstances, the District endorses a policy of progressive discipline in which it
attempts to provide employees with notice of deficiencies and an opportunity to improve. It
does, however, retain the right to administer discipline in any manner it sees fit. This policy
does not modify the status of employees as employees at will or in any way restrict the
District�s right to bypass the disciplinary procedures suggested.

The following steps are suggested in the discipline procedure. All steps should be documented
in the employee�s personnel file.

106



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 31

Step 1: Informal Discussion. When a performance problem is first identified, the nature
of the problem and the action necessary to correct it should be thoroughly discussed
with the employee.

Step 2: Coaching. If a private informal discussion with the employee has not resulted in
corrective action, following a thorough investigation, the supervisor should meet with
the employee and (a) review the problem, (b) permit the employee to present
information regarding the problem, (c) advise the employee that the problem must be
corrected, (d) inform the employee that failure to correct the problem will result in
further disciplinary action that may include discharge, and (e) issue a counseling notice
to the employee.

Step 3: Reprimand. If satisfactory performance and corrective action are not achieved
under Steps 1 and 2, the supervisor and a third party representative (Administrator,
Board Manager, or Human Resource Consultant) should meet with the employee in
private and proceed via (a) through (d) above and issue a written warning to the
employee in the form of a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP).

Step 4: Suspension. The Administrator has the authority to temporarily remove
employees from the workplace, with or without pay, and shall inform the Board
immediately. An exempt employee generally may not be suspended without pay for less
than a full day, and the suspension must be related to written workplace conduct rules
applicable to all employees, such as a written policy prohibiting sexual harassment or
workplace violence.

Step 5: Failure to improve. Failure to improve performance or behavior after the written
warning or suspension can result in termination.

The progressive disciplinary procedures described above also may be applied to an employee
who is experiencing a series of unrelated problems involving job performance or behavior.

In cases involving serious misconduct, or any time the supervisor determines it is necessary,
such as a major breach of policy or violation of law, the procedures contained above may be
disregarded. Typically, the supervisor should suspend the employee immediately (with or
without pay), and an investigation of the incidents leading up to the suspension should be
conducted to determine if any further action, such as termination, should be taken.

107



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 32

8 TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE

8.1 HOLIDAYS

The District observes and allows time off with pay for the following 11 holidays:

Holiday Date/Day

 New Year�s Day January 1
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Third Monday in January
 Presidents� Day Third Monday in February
 Memorial Day Last Monday in May
 Independence Day July 4
 Labor Day First Monday in September
 Veterans Day November 11
 Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November
 Day after Thanksgiving Fourth Friday in November
 Christmas Eve Day December 24
 Christmas Day December 25

The District, at the start of each calendar year, will designate any additional holidays.

In addition, each employee is entitled to one floating holiday as mutually arranged between
employee and supervisor. Floating holidays will be scheduled to ensure at least one person to
be in the office on any day the office is scheduled to be open. In the year of employment with
the District, employees are eligible for a floating holiday after six months of employment,
following the six month learning period review. A floating holiday does not carry over, nor is it
paid out upon termination.

When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the preceding Friday or following Monday will be
declared a holiday. To be eligible to receive compensation for an observed holiday, an
employee must be on regular full time status on the workday before and after the holiday.
Regular part time employees will be paid pro rata for holidays. Temporary employees will not
be paid for holidays. Paid holidays which occur during a period of vacation or sick leave are not
counted as days of vacation or sick leave.

Holiday pay. Holiday pay shall be at the employee�s regular straight time rate, inclusive of shift
premiums, times the employee�s regularly scheduled hours (not to exceed eight hours).

To receive holiday pay, an eligible nonexempt employee must be at work or taking an approved
absence on the workdays immediately preceding and immediately following the day on which
the holiday is observed. An approved absence is a day of paid vacation or paid sick leave. If an
employee is absent on one or both of these days because of an illness or injury, the District may
require verification of the reason for the absence before approving holiday pay.

Religious observances. Employees who need time off to observe religious practices or holidays
not already scheduled by the District should speak with their supervisor. Depending upon

108



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 33

business needs, the employee may be able to work on a day that is normally observed as a
holiday and then take time off for another religious day. Employees may also be able to switch
a scheduled day with another employee, take vacation time, or take off unpaid days. The
District will seek to reasonably accommodate individuals� religious observances.

8.2 VACATION

The District recognizes the importance of time off from work to relax, spend time with family,
and enjoy leisure activities. The District provides paid vacation time to full time employees for
this purpose, and employees are encouraged to take vacation during the year. Part time
employees who are regularly scheduled to work 24 or more hours per week will be eligible for
paid vacation on a pro rata schedule.

Full time employees will accrue paid vacation according to the following schedule:

Years of Service Accrual Rate Annual Leave

Years 1 2 3.33 hours/pay period 80 hours/10 days

Years 3�4 4.00 hours/pay period 96 hours/12 days

Years 5 10 5.00 hours/pay period 120 hours/15 days

Years 11 15 5.66 hours/pay period 136 hours/17 days

Years 16 and over 6.65 hours/pay period 160 hours/20 days

Temporary employees are not eligible to accrue vacation. Request vacation time from your
supervisor as soon as possible to help ensure approval. However, the District reserves the right
to alter the dates of your vacation if it is in the best interest of the District, as determined by
the Administrator. All requests for vacations of five or more days in length must be approved at
least 30 days in advance by the Administrator (or the Board President, in the case of the
Administrator).

Employees may not take paid vacation until they actually have earned or accrued the vacation
time. New employees accrue paid vacation immediately upon employment.

Vacation may be scheduled in increments of half workdays up to a maximum of two weeks in a
row.

Vacation time can be accumulated by the employee with a maximum of 260 hours that can be
carried forward from one year into the next. It is the responsibility of the employee to schedule
vacation time in order to avoid the potential of losing vacation days. Upon termination, a
maximum of 260 hours may be included with your last paycheck, at the employee�s rate of pay
at the time of termination.

The estate of any employee who dies while employed by the District shall be entitled to receive
the earned value of the employee�s accrued unused leave, in the same manner as the employee
would have upon separation from the District.

109



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 34

8.3 PERSONAL OR SICK LEAVE

The District recognizes that from time to time, leave for personal illness occurs or personal
absences are necessary. Pay for leave assists in maintaining your income flow when you are
required to be off work because of your own non occupational illness or injury, an illness or
injury of a spouse, dependent child, parents or a personal obligation which can only be tended
to during regular employment hours.

Employees are eligible to receive up to eight hours of leave pay per month, 96 hours (12 days)
per year based on hours worked. Newly hired employees are eligible to accrue earned leave
immediately and earned leave may be granted after completion of one month of
employment. Regular part time employees working less than 24 hours and temporary
employees are not eligible for leave pay.

Leave may be accrued and carried forward without limit from year to year. Employees will not
be compensated for any accrued sick leave time upon separation from the District; however,
for those employees that were employed by the District on January 1, 2008 will be
compensated at the time of separation from the District at an amount equal to the sick leave
they had on January 1, 2008 by the hourly rate of pay at that time.

Emergency situations not specifically covered in this policy will be considered on a case by case
basis. Absences relating to such situations may or may not be charged against your record, at
the sole discretion of the Administrator.

For purpose of accruing leave, an employee using earned leave is considered to be working
while on earned leave or vacation.

Leave may be granted to employees when the employee is unable to perform work duties
due to temporary illness, short term disability, the necessity for medical, dental or chiropractic
care, pregnancy disability or childbirth, or when the employee poses a risk of exposure of
contagious disease where such exposure may endanger the health of others with whom the
employee would come in contact in the course of performing employment duties.

To be eligible for leave with pay, an employee shall
1) Request the leave, where known to be required, preferably one week in advance, or report
promptly to the Administrator the reason for the absence;
2) Keep the Administrator informed of the need for leave; and
3) If the absence is for more than three days, submit a medical certificate describing the
condition or ailment, and an estimate of the length of the leave of absence, if requested by
the Administrator.

110



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 35

8.4 LEAVE FOR FITNESS

As a way of encouraging health and well being, and reducing time lost for medical conditions,
the District allows employees to use the value of their personal or sick leave to pay for health
and wellness programs such as membership to health clubs and weight loss programs.

Cash in procedure. Submit an invoice for an allowable cost and the appropriate amount of
leave would be �cashed in� to reimburse the employee, minus appropriate withholdings for
state and federal taxes. In exercising this �cash in�, employees must have a minimum of a two
week balance after the deduction, or the �cash in� is not allowed. Sick leave balances are not
paid out upon termination.

8.5 FAMILY ANDMEDICAL LEAVE

The District abides by the federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), even though it is not legally
required. FMLA requires employers to grant unpaid leaves of absence to qualified workers for
certain medical and family related reasons. The District also abides by any state and local leave
laws. The more generous of the laws will apply to the employee if the employee is eligible
under both federal and state laws.

Please note there are many requirements, qualifications, and exceptions under these laws, and
each employee�s situation is different. Contact the Administrator to discuss options for leave.

The FMLA requires private employers with 50 or more employees and all public agencies,
including state, local, and federal employers, and local education agencies (schools) to provide
eligible employees up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job protected leave in any 12 month period for
certain family and medical reasons. The 12 month period is a rolling period measured backward
from the date an employee uses any FMLA leave, except for leaves to care for a covered
servicemember with a serious illness or injury. For those leaves, the leave entitlement is 26
weeks in a single 12 month period measured forward from the date an employee first takes
that type of leave.

Basic leave entitlement. The FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of
unpaid, job protected leave to eligible employees for the following reasons: (1) for incapacity
due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, or childbirth; (2) to care for the employee�s child after
birth or placement for adoption or foster care; (3) to care for the employee�s spouse, child, or
parent who has a serious health condition; or (4) for a serious health condition that makes the
employee unable to work.

Military family leave entitlements. Eligible employees with a spouse, child, or parent on active
duty or called to active duty status in the National Guard or Reserves in support of a
contingency operation may use their 12 week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying
exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include addressing issues that arise from (1) short notice
of deployment (limited to up to 7 days of leave); (2) attending certain military events and
related activity; (3) arranging child care and school activities; (4) addressing certain financial
and legal arrangements; (5) attending certain counseling sessions; (6) spending time with

111



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 36

covered military family members on short term temporary rest and recuperation leave (limited
to up to 5 days of leave); (7) attending post deployment reintegration briefings; (8) arranging
care for or providing care to a parent who is incapable of self care; and (9) any additional
activities agreed upon by the employer and employee that arise out of the military member�s
active duty or call to active duty.

The FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees to take up
to 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered servicemember during a single 12 month period. A
covered servicemember is a current member of the armed forces, including a member of the
National Guard or reserves, who has a serious injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on
active duty that may render the servicemember medically unfit to perform the duties of the
servicemember�s office, grade, rank, or rating and for which the servicemember is undergoing
medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; is in outpatient status; or is on the temporary
disability retired list.

Benefits and protections during FMLA leave. During FMLA leave, the District will maintain the
employee�s health coverage under any �group health plan� on the same terms as if the
employee had continued to work. Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees will be
restored to their original or equivalent positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other
employment terms. However, an employee on FMLA leave does not have any greater right to
reinstatement or to other benefits and conditions of employment than if the employee had
been continuously employed during the FMLA leave period.

Certain highly compensated key employees also may be denied reinstatement when necessary
to prevent �substantial and grievous economic injury� to the District�s operations. A �key�
employee is an eligible salaried employee who is among the highest paid 10 percent of the
District�s employees within 75 miles of the worksite. Employees will be notified of their status
as key employees, when applicable, after they request FMLA leave.

Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued before the
start of an employee�s leave.

Employee eligibility. The FMLA defines eligible employees as employees who (1) have worked
for the District for at least 12 months; (2) have worked for the District for at least 1,250 hours in
the previous 12 months; and (3) work at or report to a worksite that has 50 or more employees
or is within 75 miles of District worksites that, taken together, have a total of 50 or more
employees.

Definition of �serious health condition.� A serious health condition is an illness, an injury, an
impairment, or a physical or mental condition that involves either an overnight stay in a
medical care facility or continuing treatment by a healthcare provider for a condition that either
prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee�s job or prevents the
qualified family member from participating in school, work, or other daily activities.

Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of
incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days combined with at least two visits to a
healthcare provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, incapacity due to

112



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 37

pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition
of �continuing treatment.�

Use of leave. An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can
be taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule when medically necessary. Employees
must make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to
unduly disrupt the employer�s operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies also may be taken
on an intermittent or a reduced work schedule basis.

Substitution of paid leave for unpaid leave. Employees may choose or employers may require
the use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. Accordingly, the District requires
employees to use any accrued paid vacation, personal, and sick days during an unpaid FMLA
leave taken because of the employees� own serious health condition or the serious health
condition of a family member or to care for a seriously ill or injured family member in the
military. In addition, employees must use any accrued paid vacation or personal days (but not
sick days) during FMLA leave taken to care for a newborn or newly placed child or for a
qualifying exigency arising out of a family member�s active duty or call to active duty status in
support of a contingency operation. In order to use paid leave for FMLA leave, employees must
comply with the District�s normal paid leave procedures found in its Vacation and Sick Leave
policies.

Employee responsibilities. Employees must provide 30 days� advance notice of the need to
take FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable. When 30 days� notice is not possible,
employees must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with the
District�s normal call in procedures. The District may delay leave to employees who do not
provide proper advance notice of the foreseeable need for leave, absent unusual circumstances
preventing the notice.

Employees must provide sufficient information for the District to determine if the leave may
qualify for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient
information may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions, the family
member is unable to perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing
treatment by a healthcare provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family
leave. Employees also must inform the District if the requested leave is for a reason for which
FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. Employees also are required to provide a
certification and periodic recertification supporting the need for leave. The District also may
require a second and, if necessary, a third opinion (at the District�s expense) and, when the
leave is a result of the employee�s own serious health condition, a fitness for duty report to
return to work. The District also may delay or deny approval of leave for lack of proper medical
certification.

District responsibilities. The District will inform employees requesting leave whether they are
eligible under the FMLA. If they are, the notice will specify any additional information required,
as well as the employees� rights and responsibilities. If employees are not eligible, the District
will provide a reason for the ineligibility.

113



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 38

The District will inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA protected and the
amount of leave counted against the employees� FMLA leave entitlement. If the District
determines that the leave is not FMLA protected, the District will notify the employees.

Other provisions. Under an exception to the FLSA in the FMLA regulations, hourly amounts may
be deducted for unpaid leave from the salary of executive, administrative, and professional
employees; outside sales representatives; certain highly skilled computer professionals; and
certain highly compensated employees who are exempt from the minimum wage and overtime
requirements of the FLSA, without affecting the employees� exempt status. This special
exception to the �salary basis� requirements for the FLSA�s exemptions extends only to eligible
employees� use of FMLA leave.

Employees may not perform work for self employment or for any other employer during an
approved leave of absence, except when the leave is for military or public service or when the
District has approved the employment under its Outside Employment policy and the
employees� reason for FMLA leave does not preclude the outside employment.

Unlawful acts by employers. The FMLA makes it unlawful for any employer (1) to interfere
with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under the FMLA or (2) to discharge or
discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA or for
involvement in any proceeding under or relating to the FMLA.

Enforcement. An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may
bring a private lawsuit against an employer. The FMLA does not affect any federal or state law
prohibiting discrimination or supersede any state or local law or collective bargaining
agreement that provides greater family or medical leave rights.

8.6 WORK RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS

You are to immediately report all work related injuries or illnesses to the District Administrator.
The District Administrator will arrange to complete a First Report of Injury form for the
Worker�s Compensation Insurance of the District.

Compensation for a work related injury or illness shall be made in accordance with the
provisions of the workers� compensation program. Proper notification must be given to the
District Administrator of the expected duration of all such absences. You will be required to
provide a release from a physician upon your return to work. The District reserves the right to
require you to be seen by a physician of its choice.

8.7 MILITARY LEAVE

The District supports the military obligations of all employees and grants leaves for uniformed
service in accordance with applicable federal and state laws. Any employee who needs time off
for uniformed service should immediately notify the Administrator, who will provide details

114



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 39

regarding the leave. If an employee is unable to provide notice before leaving for uniformed
service, a family member should notify the Administrator as soon as possible.

Upon return from military leave, employees will retain certain rights with respect to
reinstatement, seniority, layoffs, compensation, length of service promotions, and length of
service pay increases, as required by applicable federal or state law. Failure to report for work
within the prescribed time after completion of military service will be considered a voluntary
termination.

All regular full time employees serving on military duty with a reserve component of the US
Armed Forces or the National Guard are eligible for up to ten unpaid days per year with
advance approval from the Administrator.

8.8 UNPAID PERSONAL LEAVE
Circumstances of a unique personal nature may cause an employee to seek time off without
pay. A request for an unpaid personal leave of absence may be approved for a regular full time
employee who has completed at least one year of continuous service, provided it is reasonable
in view of the compelling nature and need, employee performance, departmental workload
involved and any other relevant individual circumstances. It is the Administrator�s responsibility
to evaluate the request and recommend approval if it is justified. Approval by the Board is
required for any personal leave request and such approval is totally within the board�s
discretion. Personal leaves of absence will normally be limited to 30 days, and requested after
paid leave is exhausted. During unpaid leave, employees will pay for the employer and
employee portions of benefits.

8.9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE
Employees with more than one month of service may take up to five days of paid bereavement
leave upon the death of a member of their immediate family. �Immediate family members� are
defined as an employee�s spouse, domestic partner, parents, stepparents, siblings, children,
stepchildren, grandparents, parent in law, brother in law, sister in law, son in law, daughter
in law, or grandchild. All regular, full time employees may take up to one day off with pay to
attend the funeral of an extended family member (aunts, uncles, and cousins).

The District may require verification of the need for the leave. The employee�s supervisor will
consider this time off on a case by case basis.

Payment for bereavement leave is computed at the regular hourly rate to a maximum of eight
hours for one day. Time off granted in accordance with this policy shall not be credited as time
worked for the purpose of computing overtime for non exempt employees.

8.10 JURY DUTY/COURT APPEARANCE

The District supports employees in their civic duty to serve on a jury. Employees must present
any summons to jury duty to their supervisor (or Board President, in the case of the

115



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 40

Administrator) as soon as possible after receiving the notice to allow advance planning for an
employee�s absence.

Nonexempt employees will be paid for up to two weeks of jury duty service at their regular rate
of pay minus any compensation received from the court for the period of service. Exempt
employees are subject to the same two week limitation except that they will also receive pay
for any days they serve as a juror or witness in a workweek in which they actually perform
work. All employees may use any accrued time off if required to serve more than two weeks on
a jury.

If an employee is released from jury duty after four hours or less of service, the employee must
report to work for the remainder of that workday.

Time for appearance in court for personal business will be the individual employee�s
responsibility. Normally, personal days or vacation days will be used for this purpose.

An employee who volunteers and has not been officially summoned for jury duty will not be
paid and the above described provisions will not apply. The District reserves the right to
request that the Court excuse you from jury duty if your services are deemed to be critical at
that time.

8.11 TIME OFF FOR VOTING

The District recognizes that voting is a right and privilege of being a citizen of the United States
and encourages employees to exercise their right to vote. In almost all cases, you will have
sufficient time outside working hours to vote. If for any reason you think this won�t be the case,
contact your supervisor to discuss scheduling accommodations.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

116



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 41

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The District recognizes the value of benefits to employees and their families. The District
supports employees by offering a comprehensive and competitive benefits program. For more
information regarding benefit programs, please refer to the plan policies, or contact the
Administrator. To the extent the information provided here conflicts with the full plan
document, the full plan document will control.

Temporary employees are not eligible for District employee benefits except those mandated by
state or federal law. Continuous employment with the District is defined as �length of service�
which will be used as a basis for vacation, personal leave, layoff, call back, and may apply to
other benefits. Length of service will continue to accumulate except for a resignation,
termination, or a break of six months or more due to layoff.

The District pays for benefits such as Workers� Compensation, Social Security, Medicare and
Unemployment benefits, as required by federal and state laws.

9.1 MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE

Full time employees working 30 hours or more per week are eligible for insurance on the first
of the month following date of hire. To keep coverage in force, every insured employee must
work a minimum of 30 hours per week. Purchasing additional insurance may be an option and
is indicated in the plan documents. Premiums will be paid through pre approved payroll
deductions of the employee.

The District pays 100% of the monthly medical premium for full time employees, and 50% of
the cost of dependent coverage for the lowest cost provider offered in the program.

9.2 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE

The District provides life insurance for full time employees who work a minimum of 30 hours
per week. Employees are eligible for this benefit on the first of the month following date of
hire. The basic life coverage is $50,000. The District pays for the cost of this coverage in full.

9.3 SHORT TERMDISABILITY

Short term disability is offered to full time employees working a minimum of 30 hours per
week. Employees are eligible for this benefit on the first of the month following date of hire. If
an employee becomes disabled and cannot work for a short period of time, this coverage pays
60 percent of the employee�s salary, up to 26 weeks. This benefit is funded solely by the
employer. Employees will not be paid vacation or sick leave for approved absences covered by
the District�s program, except to supplement the short term disability benefits.

117



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 42

Short term disability benefits may run concurrently with FMLA leave and/or any other leave
where permitted by state and federal law.

9.4 LONG TERM DISABILITY

Long term disability benefits are offered to full time employees working a minimum of 30 hours
per week. Employees are eligible for this benefit on the first of the month following date of
hire. If an employee becomes totally disabled and cannot work for an extended period of time,
this coverage pays 60 percent of the employee�s salary, up to the policy limits. This benefit is
funded fully by the District.

Long term disability benefits will run concurrently with FMLA leave and/or any other leave
where permitted by state and federal law.

9.5 RETIREMENT

The District recognizes the importance of saving for retirement and enrolls all eligible
employees in the State of Minnesota Public Employee Retirement Association (PERA), General
Plan. The rate of contribution by both the District and the employee will be in the proportion
set forth under the applicable state law.

9.6 DEFERRED COMPENSATION (OPTIONAL)
Minnesota State Retirement System
An employee will be eligible to participate in the State of Minnesota's Deferred Compensation
Plan. This is a voluntary plan which allows you to contribute a pretax portion of each paycheck
into a State managed deferred revenue account until the time that the money is withdrawn
from the account.
Plans available: MNDCP 457 (b) Def Comp (pre tax), MNDCP Roth 457 (b) Def Comp (after tax)

9.7 HEALTH CARE SAVINGS PLAN

Eligible District employees will immediately participate in a Health Care Savings Plan through
the Minnesota State Retirement System. Employees shall contribute the equivalent of two
hours of leave per month. The Dollar amount will be calculated using the employee�s current
salary.

9.8 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT (OPTIONAL)
A Flexible Spending Account (FSA) is a special account funded with an employee�s pre tax
dollars that can be used to pay for certain out of pocket health care and child care costs.
Eligible the first of the month following hire, an employee elects an amount, within plan limits,
at the beginning of the year that is deducted each pay period to fund the account, with a
minimum of $100 annually. FSA dollars need to be spent within the calendar year (there is
some rollover allowed into the next year), or the money in the account will be forfeited.

118



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 43

9.9 WORKERS� COMPENSATION

Workers� compensation is a �no fault� system that provides compensation for medical
expenses and wage losses to employees who are injured or who become ill because of
employment. The District pays the entire cost of workers� compensation insurance. The
insurance provides coverage for related medical and rehabilitation expenses and a portion of
lost wages to employees who sustain an injury on the job.

The District abides by all applicable state workers� compensation laws and regulations. If an
employee sustains a job related injury or illness, it is important to notify the District
Administrator immediately. An injury report, with input from the employee, will be completed,
and a claim will be filed with the Provider. In cases of true medical emergencies, report to the
nearest emergency room.

Workers� compensation benefits (paid or unpaid) will run concurrently with FMLA leave, if
applicable, where permitted by state and federal law. In addition, employees will not be paid
vacation or sick leave for approved absences covered by the District�s workers� compensation
program, except to supplement the workers� compensation benefits such as when the plan only
covers a portion of the employees� salary as allowed by state law.

119



Rice Creek Watershed District Employee Handbook 44

Employee Handbook Acknowledgement and Receipt
I hereby acknowledge receipt of the Employee Handbook of the District. I understand and agree
that it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies in the Handbook.

I understand that the Handbook and all other written and oral materials provided to me are
intended for informational purposes only. The Handbook, District practices, and other
communications do not create an employment contract or term. I understand that the policies
and benefits, both in the Handbook and those communicated to me in any other fashion, are
subject to interpretation, review, removal, and change by the board at any time without
notice.

I further understand that I am an at will employee and that neither this document nor any
other communication shall bind the District to employ me now or hereafter and that my
employment may be terminated by me or the District without reason at any time. I understand
that no representative of the District has any authority to enter into any agreement for
employment for any specified period of time or to assure any other personnel action or to
assure any benefits or terms or conditions of employment or make any agreement contrary to
the foregoing.

_____________________________________

Employee�s Name in Print

_____________________________________

Signature of Employee

______________________________________

Date Signed by Employee

TO BE PLACED IN EMPLOYEE�S PERSONNEL FILE

 

 

 

120



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
4. Anoka Washington Judicial Ditch 3 Branch 1, 2 ,4 Bid

Consideration (Ashlee Ricci)

121



Date: April 19, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Ashlee Ricci, Public Drainage Inspector
Subject: Anoka Washington Judicial Ditch 3 Repair Phase 2 � Bid Recommendation

Introduction
The Board is being asked to consider awarding a construction contract based on bids received
for the Phase 2 repair of Anoka Washington Judicial Ditch (AWJD) 3. If an award is made,
construction is expected to commence in late fall/winter of 2023 2024.

Background
At the Board�s direction, Houston Engineering, Inc. (HEI) completed a Repair Report for AWJD 3,
dated 12/21/2018, which proposed phased repair of the system. In 2020, the District
completed Phase 1, which included repair of the Main Trunk and Branch 3.

At the Board�s additional direction, HEI provided an addendum to the Repair Report to address
Phase 2, dated 8/12/2022. The Board adopted Resolution 2022 21 directing the Phase 2 repair.

At the March 22, 2023 meeting, the Board authorized District staff and HEI to advertise a
solicitation of bids for the Phase 2 repair. The bid was advertised on QuestCDN starting March
28, 2023. Following the bid opening on April 14, 2023, the bids were tabulated and reviewed by
HEI. The lowest successful bid was from JACON LLC in the amount of $244,542.95. This is less
than the engineer�s estimate of $369,583.00.

Staff Recommendation
District staff recommends that the Board of Managers adopt Resolution 2023 06, awarding the
contract to JACON LLC at a contract price of $244,542.95. The resolution also authorizes the
Administrator to 1) execute contract documents as necessary and on advice of the engineer
and counsel and 2) execute change orders increasing the contract price in an amount not to
exceed 10% of the contract price ($24,454.30).

Proposed Motion
Manager __________ moves to offer resolution 2023 06 and its adoption, seconded by
Manager __________.

Attachments
HEI Technical Memorandum Bid Recommendation for AWJD 3 Branch 1, 2, & 4, (4/18/2023)
Resolution 2023 06

122



123



124



125



126



127



128



RCWD Resolution 2023 06

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 06

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT
BOARD OF MANAGERS

RESOLUTION AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE REPAIR OF ANOKAWASHINGTON JUDICIAL
DITCH 3 (PHASE 2)

Manager ______________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption, seconded
by Manager ______________:

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2022, upon completion of proceedings to establish a project to repair
Branches 1, 2 and 4 (Phase 2 Repair) of Anoka Washington Judicial Ditch (AWJD) 3 (the Repair),
the Board of Managers adopted resolution 2022 21, directing the Repair, directing its
administrator to take all subsequent actions necessary to implement the Repair, and authorizing
the collection of revenue and expenditure of capital for the Repair; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to resolution 2022 21 the District�s engineer prepared final plans and
specifications for the Repair components and the District�s administrator solicited bids according
to applicable law; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable legal requirements, the District duly advertised for
sealed bids to perform the Repair and on April 14, 2023, virtually, via Microsoft Teams and the
vBid portal, bids were opened and read aloud, with 8 bids being received for the Repair; and

WHEREAS, the District engineer has submitted a memorandum dated April 18, 2023, in which it
reports that the low bid was submitted by JACON LLC., in the amount of $244,454.30, that the bid
is responsive and that JACON LLC., is a responsible bidder; and

Therefore, be it resolved by the RCWD Board of Managers that:

A. The contract for the repair of AWJD 3 Branches 1, 2, & 4 (Phase 2) is awarded to JACON
LLC., for the contract price of $244,542.95.

B. The District administrator shall sign and transmit the notice of award, sign the
construction agreement, and issue the notice to proceed on advice of counsel and the
District�s engineer, when prerequisites for issuance and bonding have been met by the
contractor.

C. The District administrator may sign task/change orders increasing the contract price in
an aggregate net amount not to exceed 10% of the contract price ($24,454.30) to
address unforeseen conditions or omissions discovered as the project progresses.

129



[16266 0040/5060272/1] Resolution 2022 09 2

The question was on the adoption of the Resolution and there were __ yeas and __ nays as
follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain
BRADLEY
ROBERTSON
WAGAMON
WALLER
WEINANDT

Upon vote, the Chair declared the Resolution _____________.

______________________________________ Dated: April 26, 2023
Jessica Robertson, Secretary

* * * * * * * * * * *

I, Jessica Robertson, Secretary of the Rice Creek Watershed District, do hereby certify that I have
compared the above resolutions with the original thereof as the same appears of record and on
file with the District and find the same to be a true and correct transcript thereof.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this 26th day of April 2023.

______________________________
Jessica Robertson, Secretary

130



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
5. Check Register Dated April 26, 2023, in the Amount

of $318,936.21 Prepared by Redpath and Company

131



Page 1 of 1 132



133



Page 1 of 2 134



Page 2 of 2 135



Page 1 of 24

136



Page 2 of 24

137



Page 3 of 24

138



Page 4 of 24

139



Page 5 of 24

140



Page 6 of 24

141



Page 7 of 24

142



Page 8 of 24

143



Page 9 of 24

144



Page 10 of 24

145



Page 11 of 24

146



Page 12 of 24

147



Page 13 of 24

148



Page 14 of 24

149



Page 15 of 24

150



Page 16 of 24

151



Page 17 of 24

152



Page 18 of 24

153



Page 19 of 24

154



Page 20 of 24

155



Page 21 of 24

156



Page 22 of 24

157



Page 23 of 24

158



Page 24 of 24

159



ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION
1. Columbus Letter of Request for Wetland Credits Based

Upon October 15, 2009 Memorandum of Understanding
(Nick Tomczik)

160



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Date:    April 18, 2023 

To:    RCWD Board of Managers 

From:    Nick Tomczik, Administrator 

Subject:  Columbus Letter of Request for Wetland Credits 

Introduction 
The City of Columbus is requesting the District reserve three wetland credits for future projects. 
 
Background 
On April 6 of this year, the City of Columbus, through its city attorney William Griffith, sent a letter 
requesting the District reserve three wetland credits for future projects, including transportation and 
development projects in the City.  The City request is based on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
dated October 15, 2009 between the Minnesota Department of Resources, the Rice Creek Watershed 
District, Anoka County, Washington County, and the City of Columbus.  The letter requests an 
opportunity to appear before the Board address any questions and support this request. 
 
The following is an excerpt from a February 2023 District staff email to City of Columbus staff: 
“The MOU and minutes reflect the group’s effort to address immediate needs to get the various projects 
moving forward.  The MOU does capture the City’s interest in wetland credit but does not provide any 
further detail.  The District recognized likely development in the area and the public value in addressing 
the public drainage system, flooding, in both Columbus and Forest Lake.  The repair of the public 
drainage system is complete, and the District continues to address the public value by fulfilling its 
obligations as public drainage authority. 
  
So, I recognize Columbus’s interest in wetland credits, yet I do not see how that involves RCWD or what is 
to take place.  The parties at the time had no details to consider regarding what would later become Dan 
Hair/Brown’s Preserve wetland banks.  There are many details to consider, and it is good to also 
recognize the State’s oversite and administration of wetland banks.” 
 
The District staff email characterized the issue raised by the City to be at “step one” and sought the City 
of Columbus to definitively define what is being asked of the District.  Staff shared the initial Columbus 
communication content with the RCWD Board at its March 8, 2023 meeting. 
 
District staff find nothing definitive regarding a District obligation to provide wetland credits, the cost of 
wetland credits, or a timeframe.  Post the MOU, the District applied significant resources to ensure the 
effective function of Anoka County Ditch 15 and Judicial Ditch 4 systems.  The District’s recognition of its 
public drainage obligations and foresight for wetland credits prompted wetland bank development 
efforts.  The establishment of the wetland bank necessitated expenditure of District ad valorem funds 
and extensive work with the state and federal government.  The District realignment of the public 
drainage system to facilitate public drainage system function and wetland bank establishment required 
14.64 acres of wetland mitigation credit.  The District is currently under a prohibition from competing 
with the neighboring Hair wetland bank and has on‐going District ad valorem costs in site maintenance 
obligations. 
 

161



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
Rice Creek Watershed District  

2 | P a g e  
 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommend, consistent with the City’s letter, that the Board ask detailed questions of the City 
regarding its request, also give consideration to District current and future obligations both Public 
Drainage and otherwise.  Staff request Board consensus direction.    
 
Attachment 
April 6, 2023, City of Columbus, Larkin Hoffman, letter 
October 15, 2009, Memorandum of Understanding with minutes  

162



April 6, 2023 

Board of Managers 
Rice Creek Watershed District 
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE #611 
Blaine, MN  55449-4539 

Via Email 
Michael Bradley, mbradley@ricecreek.org 

John Waller, (via U.S. mail) 
Steve Wagamon, swagamon@ricecreek.org 

Jess Robertson, jrobertson@ricecreek.org 
Marcie Weinandt, mweinandt@ricecreek.org

Re: Request for Wetland Credits Based Upon Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), Dated 
October 15, 2009, By and Between the Minnesota Department of Resources (DNR), the 
Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD), Anoka County, Washington County, and the 
City of Columbus, Minnesota (Columbus) 

Dear Board of Managers: 

We represent the City of Columbus (“City”) as its city attorney.  The Mayor and City Council 
has directed us to prepare this letter to request wetland credits under the above MOU.  Since the 
City does not have a specific public project that requires use of the credits, the City is asking that 
RCWD reserve three wetland credits for future projects, including transportation and 
development projects in the City (the “Request”). 

Background 

The above referenced MOU was entered into in 2009 to facilitate several projects for the above 
governmental bodies, including Road 83 overpass over Interstate 35, along with related 
stormwater facilities, acquisition of property by the DNR to provide access to the Lamprey Pass 
Wildlife Management Area (WMA), widening of County Road 23, by Anoka County and repairs 
by RCWD to Anoka County Ditch 15 and Judicial Ditch 4.  In light of the tight timing of all 
these projects in 2009, each of the governmental bodies agreed to cooperate with project 
approvals, including the adoption of a resolution by the City of Columbus for property 
acquisition by RCWD and the DNR. 

The MOU was part of the public record that followed a workshop held on September 22, 2009, 
including the City and RCWD.  The parties each set forth their goals for the workshop and 
MOU.  As part of its introduction, the City stated: 

The City of Columbus is interested in the ditch repair work being done to help with 
flooding issues to individual property owners and obtaining wetland credits through 
restoration done by RCWD. Page 11 of 29 

163



Board of Managers 
April 6, 2023 
Page 2

The City’s mayor, Mel Mettler stated as follows: 

Since May, the City met with RCWD to try and work out the details for the sale of the 
Houle WMA and to achieve some benefit for their City.  Page 13 of 29 

The statements of the City were recapped by the facilitator as follows: 

Benefits sought by Columbus: 

Wetland credits for future use by the City. 

Improved drainage which results in improved developable lands on the east side 
of the freeway. 

Page 14 of 29 

Doug Thomas presented the goals of RCWD including: 

Achieve repair project in a way that accomplishes the three needs (listed above), and the 
RCWD believes that establishing wetland restoration credits helps RCWD offset some 
costs to re-align and do some components of the repair project as well as provide public 
benefit to the City of Forest Lake and the City of Columbus that they look at future 
municipal projects where they may need to mitigate wetland.  (Emphasis added.) 

Page 15 of 29 

Commissioner Sivarajah summarized the position of Anoka County as follows: 

Anoka County would like to see all parties leave the room today with some sort of good 
faith agreements about how everyone might move forward and Anoka County wants to 
work with all the partners in helping facilitate that. 

Page 16 of 29 

Parties then agreed to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding incorporating the agreements 
of the parties worked out in the workshop with each party within in good faith on commitments 
made at the meeting. 

Request to RCWD 

Based upon the above discussion and commitments from 2009, the City staff has reached out to 
RCWD staff on several occasions to formalize the request for wetland credits and to reserve 
wetland credits.  Initially, City staff was told that the request was not timely prior to 
establishment of the restoration area.  Now that restoration is complete, the City wants to 
formalize the reservation of wetland credits to ensure they are available when municipal projects 
come forward. 

164



Board of Managers 
April 6, 2023 
Page 3

To present this request, the City Council has requested that it has an opportunity to appear before 
the Board of Managers of RCWD to address any questions managers may have and to 
underscore their support for this request. 

We appreciate cooperation with this request and look forward to working with the Board of 
Managers of RCWD. 

Sincerely, 

William C. Griffith, for 
Larkin Hoffman 
Direct Dial: 952-896-3290 
Direct Fax: 952-842-1729 
Email:  wgriffith@larkinhoffman.com 

cc: Mayor and City Council 
Elizabeth Mursko 

 Nick Tomczik (via email: ntomczik@ricecreek.org) 

165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION
2. Staff Reports

195



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District

1 | P a g e

Date: April 19th, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Anna Grace, Regulatory Technician
Subject: Staff Report 3/15/23 – 4/18/23

Created new permit files for online database and Laserfiche.
Created new review files for online database and Laserfiche.
Reviewed new permit applications and Initial Completeness Review Checklists were completed.
Sent incomplete notice emails and continued working with applicants in tandem with RCWD staff and HEI 
consultants to receive all the required application materials.
Continued coordinating with RCWD staff and inspectors with violations.
Sent five permit applications to HEI for review.
Sent three permit applications to RCWD for review.
Received seven new review file inquiries for permit/past file/landowner/consultant/violation/City.
Phone and email correspondence. 
Attended 25 scheduled meetings.

o Scheduled and attended five pre-application meetings with HEI, RCWD, and project’s 
consultants. 

o Attended a pre-application meeting with RCWD, HEI, TEP, and project’s consultants. 
o Attended PERA Webinar, “From Hire to Retire.”
o Attended the kick-off meeting for the new website - initial proposal and process details

discussed.
o Attended webinar, “Awaking from your Erosion Hibernation,” hosted by University of 

Minnesota’s Erosion and Stormwater Management Program. 
o Assisted in on-boarding efforts of new RCWD staff members Will Roach and Abel Green. Terrence 

Chastan-Davis created an introduction presentation on our Laserfiche database to go over.
o Cubicles:

Obtained second cubical quote.
Scheduled and attended three electrical vendors onsite assessments with Ashlee and 
Tom. 
Theresa and I discussed cubicle and electrical proposals with office building 
management – Pine Tree.
Retrieved fabric and countertop samples. The top four fabrics were chosen, and staff 
were polled to choose their favorite. The fabric, “Aspen,” was the winner! Aspen is the 
closest match to the existing cubicle fabric.
Presented quotes with Nick, Theresa, and Tom. Nick and Theresa gave the green light to 
proceed with the chosen cube and electrical vendors.
Scheduled and attended final cubical onsite walk through with Tom.
Theresa obtained and mailed initial invoicing checks to both electrical and cubicle
vendors.
Assisted in setting up the new office chairs Theresa purchased for the new cubicles. 
Working on next steps and scheduling with cubical and electrical vendors.

196



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District

1 | P a g e

Date: April 19, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Ashlee Ricci, Public Drainage Inspector
Subject: Staff Report (03/15/2023 – 04/19/2023)

Highlights from Preceding Month

Attended regular staff meetings, Board workshop and special workshop, Board meeting
Responded to citizen inquiries regarding drainage concerns
Coordinated IT correspondence, device maintenance, device procurement
Assist staff in resolving remote working technology problems
Continued to ensure staff have remote access capabilities
Attended drainage Team biweekly meetings
Managed contracted services agreement workplans
Managed multiple problem tickets with IT consultant
Coordinated procurement of computers and other IT needs
Continued work plan development for District Facilities and Public Drainage Systems
Reviewed invoices for approval and coordinated payments with Office Manager
Met with Drainage Inspector to coordinate work plans
Continued development of materials for onboarding staff into the public drainage and district 
facilities programs
Directed work tasks for Field Technical Assistant
Served on the interview committee for the Program Support Assistant position
Sent project updates for ACD 53-62 Main Trunk repair
Review work on ACD 53-62 Main Trunk repair and coordinate with HEI rep 
Meet City staff and contractor on-site of ACD 53-62 Main Trunk repair
Continued additional job duties to cover Project Manager’s position 
Managed and reviewed budgets for IT and public drainage and facilities
Work with Communications Coordinator on annual report data
Begin preparation for new IT liaison and additional staff
Presented at the April City-County partner meeting 
Reviewed and coordinated PDS MOA
Reviewed District Facilities memos and next steps for updating management of facilities
Coordinated MOA framework for PLOP/Halls Marsh
Begin coordination of IESF installation
Attend bid opening for AWJD 3 Branches 1, 2 & 4 repair
Onboard new staff to IT
Review and investigate options for telecommunications options
Work with the City of Lino Lakes and Shenandoah Park BMP feasibility study
Met with Communications Coordinator to discuss website content for public drainage and 
facilities

197



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Date:  March 15, 2023 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers 
From:  Terrence Chastan-Davis, District Inspector/Technician  
Subject: Staff Report (March 16-April 19, 2023) 
 

 
Highlights from Preceding Month 
 

 Completed 11 inspections of projects and reviewed files to confirm rule compliance. 

o Met with 3 site supervisors to discuss corrective actions on site. 
o Sent out inspection reports with specified corrective actions and requested updates when 

corrective actions were complete. 
 

 Attended 2 pre-construction meeting to review project schedules and discuss RCWD permit requirements. 
 

 Assisted Ramsey County SWCD inspectors with specific permit inquires. 
 

 Participated with the Watershed Technician/Inspector Interviews and candidate selection. 
 

 Coordinated watershed Technician/Inspector onboarding activities with other RCWD staff. 
 

 Assisted with coordinating onboarding activities for the District Technical Assistant. 
 

 Participated during the website update meetings.  
 

 Attended the RCWD City-County partner meeting.   
 

 Recommended permit closure and/or surety returns/partial returns for 3 permits. 
 

 Recommended permit extension for 3 sites that have remaining work. 
 

 Noticed the Board for a 10-day notice for work without a valid permit. 
 

 Assisted in responding to questions and concerns from the public, applicants, contractors, and contracted 
inspectors.    

198



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District

1 | P a g e
 

 

Date:  April 19, 2023 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers 
From:  Ali Chalberg, Watershed Technician & Inspector 
Subject: Staff Report 3/15/2023  4/19/2023 
 

 

Highlights from Preceding Month
 

Overview: This month has been heavy in trainings. This included many meetings, workshops, and 
webinars as well as learning from Matt and Catherine how to start sampling season. In addition, I have 
been working mainly with Terrence to onboard Will Roach and welcome him to the inspection team! 
Looking forward to more onsite meetings and inspections now that the snow has melted, and 
construction season is beginning! 
 

MS4 
Attended monthly MS4 webinar with MPCA  

o Staff turnover 
o Stormwater Wiki 
o Update MS4 permit website slow start 

New Brighton WHPP Review 
 

Lakes/Streams 
Sampling equipment maintenance 
Plant/ Chl-a data entry  
PIT Antenna site maintenance 
UMN Plant Survey Data Submit 
UMN Chloride data entry 

 

Meetings 
City County Partner meeting 
DNR Filemaker Workshop (Plant Survey Work) 
BWSR Webinar 
New Website overview meeting 
Washington County Consortium 
MECA presentation 
New Stormwater Wiki Page meeting (PCA) 
Project meetings 
Inspection team meetings 
Permit Coordination meeting 
Staff meetings 

 

Other 
New website permitting and water quality pages work
Went through interview and hiring process for Will Roach 
Taking new hires out on-site visits and overall getting to know them! 

199



Date: April 19, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Matt Kocian, Lake and Stream Program Manager
Subject: Staff Report 3/14 � 4/19/2023

Highlights for Preceding Month
Bold items required significant time & attention

Monitoring
o Data entry, analysis, and reporting � data submittal to MPCA
o Lake chloride monitoring (on the ice)
o Monitoring Program Plan update (w/HEI)

Long Lake Carp Management
o New physical barrier on Johanna Creek �

Barrier construction � on site inspections, contractor oversight, troubleshooting
Arrange for screen fabrication
Peterson Companies Pay App (Board Meeting)

o 2023 Long Lake site prep and equipment installation
PIT antenna installation and maintenance

Potential Centerville Lake Alum project
o pre project development and investigation

Statewide carp workshop development with MN Aquatic Invasive Species Research Center; goal:
improve funding and regulatory processes to benefit carp managers � prepare presentation

City County Partner meeting

Kyle transitional items
o Clear Lake / WCD retrofit project
o Centerville SWA with ACD

Meeting with City of Circle Pines re: Golden Lake water quality status and lake management outlook

Silver Lake homeowner meeting

U of MN special study � chloride monitoring in the RCWD (support class project, �extra� sample
collection from U of MN students)

RCWD Project Program Manager (Kyle�s replacement) hiring � review resumes and prep interview
questions

200



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District

1 | P a g e
 

 

Date:  April 19, 2023 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers 
From:  Molly Nelson, Watershed Technician/ Water Resources Specialist 
Subject: Staff Report 3/16/23 - 4/19/23 
 

Introduction 
The highlights of my work from March 16th to April 19th are as follows: 
(Note that these are highlights and not the full extent of all work that I have done) 
 
RCWD Cost-Share & Citizen Advisory Committee 
I continued efforts with assisting at the monthly CAC (Citizen Advisory Committee) meeting for minutes 
and other coordination. This month, I presented phase one of my work with creating a cost-benefit 
analysis for the Water Quality Grant Program. This was received well by the members, and I have had 
discussions with a few members about how to best utilize the data for reviewing future applications. 
 
Multiple landowners have reached out about potential projects for cost-share, and I have been 
meeting with them to discuss the program and review their ideas. I have also been increasing targeted 
outreach efforts in Anoka and Washington counties to increase the number of applicants with intentions 
to match Ramsey county's output. 
 
I met onsite for two potential large collaboration projects, one in Ramsey County and one in Washington 
County. Additionally, there have been multiple meetings with Washington Conservation District for 
potential water quality work on Lost Lake and finalizing the Miron waste storage facility project from 
2019 (amended in 2022). 
 
Three new mini grant applications have been reviewed and processed this past month. I am working to 
provide proper guidance for projects and obtain photos and stories from applicants throughout the 
project installation process. There is about $2,500 remaining in the 30-05 budget to award applicants. 
I have been continuously working to enter data into the MS4front database from past WQ grant 
projects, as well as transferring all files from the G drive to Laserfiche to free up space.  
 
Communications and Outreach 
I have continued work with Kendra Sommerfeld on Outreach Programs and communications with the  
Public. This month has been focused on prepping and designing outreach materials for upcoming events 
in the Spring and Summer.  
I am actively working on organizing the database for all materials and historical work when time 
permits. I have completed additional work with the public by answering questions about the District  
and directing people to the correct program. 
 
   

201



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e

Date: March 18, 2023
To:  RCWD Board of Managers
From:  Nick Tomczik, Administrator
Subject: Staff Report – April 2023

Highlights for Preceding Month

Administrative
RCD 2, 3, 5 Project Legislator Efforts, 
Discussions 
6-Month Staff Reviews
Hiring process for: 

Technical Field Assistant
Watershed Technician 
Inspector
Program Support Technician
Project Program Manager

Office Cubicle Project
Water Resource Policy Plan Advisory 
Group
Accounts Payable Review
Personnel Leave Requests
Board Delegation for Contracts
Board Meeting & Staff Meeting
Bylaw Review
HR Consultant (human resource 
manual, salary administration, on 
boarding) 

Communication & Outreach
City, Cty, Partner Mtg
MPCA Grant - Resiliency Workshops
Website Meeting
MPCA Resiliency Grant

Information Management
District Boundary Adjustment 
Process
Task Order Annual updates

  

Restoration Projects
Restoration Approaches, 
Opportunities Discussion

Regulatory
Metro Shooting / Trost Settlement 
Discussions
Regulatory / PDS Coordination
Inspection Team Meeting

Ditch & Creek Maintenance
RCWD Public Drainage Obligations 
and Approach Presentation
MS4 Permit PDS Designation
ACD 10-22-32 alternatives 
Presentation
ACD 53-62 Discussions  
RCWD PDS and District Facilities 
Meeting

Lake & Stream Management
District Approach to Resource Goals, 
Program Discussions
Golden Lake Considerations

District Facilities
Facility Review Discussions
Priebe Lake Outlet Next Steps 
Discussion

202



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e

Date: April 19th, 2023 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers
From:  Patrick Hughes, Permit Coordinator/Wetland Specialist
Subject: Staff Report for 03/15/23 to 04/19/23

Summary
Created new permit and review files for the online database
Sent notice of replacement plan application – 23-003
Sent notices of replacement plan decisions – 22-109
Assisted in the drafting of engineer’s reports – 22-116, 23-009, 23-013
Attended the 03/22/2023 and 04/12/2023 Board Meetings
Hosted pre-application meeting for Washington County Northern Environmental Center
Began preparations for Level 2 regulatory audits
Drafted TEP Findings of Fact for Park Construction project (22-109)
Hosted pre-application meeting for CSAH 14 and CR 53 roundabout project
Attended TEP meeting for MN State Emergency Operations Center project
Attended kick-off meeting for new website development
Attended meeting to discuss regulation of 37th Ave project between RCWD and Minneapolis
Attended MECA Storwmater “Awakening from your Erosion Hibernation” presentation
Attended CSAH 32 monthly planning meeting in March
Attended 2023 BWSR Spring Training opportunities
Drafted successful replacement determination for Rice Creek Meander (15-071)
Hosted follow-up meeting regarding 37th Ave jurisdiction and permitting
Shared permit and application updates for City of Forest lake monthly staff meeting
Discussed EOR permit files housed off-site
Attended City of Forest Lake monthly meeting
Attended April MN WPA meeting
Coordinated wetland bank presentation with BWSR
Attended CSAH 33 final design meeting
Hosted pre-application meeting for 35W Logistics Center in Blaine
Hosted Anoka TEP meeting for Bonfire Homestead/Blaine Brothers replacement plan
Met with City of Fridley and City of Mounds View regarding jurisdiction of Stinson Blvd project
Gave regulatory program introduction presentation to new employee Will Roach
Met with Lennar and City of Lino Lakes to discuss permitting requirements for Watermark Park
Attended MN Stormwater Seminar: Biofiltration Media
Attended sitemap and wireframes discussion for new website
Presented with Ben Meyer (BWSR) to Blaine Natural Resources Conservation Board

203



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e

Date: April 19, 2023 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers
From:  Tom Schmidt, Public Drainage Inspector
Subject: Staff Report April 2023

Highlights for this month
Responded to and addressed constituent concerns/questions about the public drainage 
system district facilities. 

Continued working on Public Drainage and District Facility program planning.  
Continued engaging with regulatory staff and consultants on the ongoing public 

drainage/pipeline conflict issues.
Created notices for upcoming public hearings and informational meetings.
Worked with Anna on the layout and procurement of new office workstations.
 Set the agenda for and led the public drainage system and project coordination 
biweekly meetings.
Attended board meetings and workshops presenting on public drainage system items.
Completed several spring flooding/runoff inspections.
Began preparing for the upcoming season. 

204



Date: 
To: 
From: 
Subject:

April 19th, 2023 

RCWD Board of Managers
Kendra Sommerfeld, Communications/Outreach Coordinator
Staff Report 3/14/2023- 4/19/2023

Water Stewards
Monthly check-ins, attended workshops
Working on capstone projects with City of Roseville 

Blue Thumb
Completed April Resilient Shoreline workshop
May workshop in progress- Turf Alternatives/Pollinator Lawns

2022 Annual Report
Completed and Board approved 
Distributed to staff, city/county contacts, posted on website, and posted on social media accounts

Partnerships/Collaborations
Supported partner shoreline restoration and pollinator workshops 
Storm drain stenciling activities with local schools in Shoreview 
Contributed to various city newsletters 
Supported new water quality education initiative with Growing Green Hearts 
Completed spring City/County Partner meeting on April 12th  
Completed RCWD Climate Change Resiliency workshops  

Community Climate Change Resiliency Plan in progress with Freshwater
Planning next steps

Planning Earth Day Events at Wargo Nature Center and Mahtomedi  
Providing materials for other events that RCWD can’t attend 

RCWD Website
Kick-off meeting complete
Planning with staff and consultants in progress 

Project Outreach 
Various outreach activities for Johanna Creek Carp Barrier in progress
Various outreach activities and sign creation for Middle Rice Creek Restoration

1 | P a g e

MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District

205



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e

Date: 4/19/23 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers
From:  Catherine Nester, District Technician/Inspector
Subject: Staff Report 3/14/23 – 4/18/23

Highlights from Preceding Month

Maintained and tested water monitoring equipment in preparation for the 2023 monitoring 

season.

Prepared supplies and finalized plans for the 2023 monitoring season. 

Assisted with chloride monitoring on selected lakes in the District.

Conducted routine stream monitoring at various stream and ditch locations throughout the

District.  

Reviewed and provided comments on the draft RCWD Monitoring Program Plan. 

Reviewed draft monitoring data submittal to the MPCA Environmental Quality Information 

System (EQuIS). 

Completed various tasks for the Met Council’s Citizen-Assisted Monitoring Program, including:

Contacted and confirmed lake monitoring volunteers for 2023. 

Inventoried, restocked, and delivered monitoring supply kits. 

Ongoing coordination with affected cities/watershed management organizations/HEI/staff on 

boundary updates in the southwest portion of District (between RCWD and MWMO, CRWD, 

RWMWD, & VLAWMO) in Ramsey, Anoka & Hennepin counties, including:

Received & reviewed feedback and comments on the recommended legal boundary 

from affected watershed management organizations and cities. 

Ongoing coordination with Stormwater Management Grant recipients to finalize grant 

agreements.

Reviewed & finalized information on the Stormwater Management Grant Program for the

RCWD 2022 annual report.

206



MEMORANDUM
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e

Date: April 18th, 2023 
To:  RCWD Board of Managers
From:  Kelsey White, Permit Review Technician
Subject: Staff Report 3/15/2023 – 4/18/2023

Drafted and sent one WCA Wetland Boundary/Type NOA. 
Drafted and sent one WCA Wetland Boundary/Type and two WCA Exemption NODs.
Completed staff review for 3 permit applications. 
Provided comments on one engineer’s report for administrative approval.
Sent 10 administrative action notices to the Board.
Drafted and sent one invoice for total permit review costs.
Sent notice of permit issuance for 9 permit applications and 2 Amended Permits. 
Sent 11 CAPROC notices and 2 Amended CAPROC notices.
Coordinated with applicants on submittal and review of CAPROC items for 20 permit 
applications.  
Sent one notice of MN Statute 15.99 decision timeframe extension.
Attended 3 pre-application meetings.
Participated in weekly permit coordination meetings and monthly permit triage.
Attended monthly inspection team meeting.
Attended one BWSR spring training webinar.
Responded to email and telephone inquiries about RCWD permitting requirements.
Responded to landowners about general WCA questions and questions regarding wetlands
on or near their properties.
Conducted interviews for the Program Support Technician position with Nick and Ashlee. 

207



MEMORANDUM 
Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e  

Date: April 19, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Theresa Stasica, Office Manager
Subject: Staff Report

 Coded invoices for payment this month which were reviewed by Administrator Nick Tomczik and
Treasurer Marcie Weinandt and sent to our accountant Nancy Martinson and Bonnie Burns via an
excel spreadsheet

 Provide bi monthly payroll template to Redpath, updated information as needed
 Gathered and reviewed employee timesheets for administrator�s final review
 Track accounts receivable and deposit checks as needed
 Review and track monthly financial reports
 Tracking expenses for Rule C permits that exceed $9,000
 Tracking expenses for ACD 10 22 32 petition bond and notify staff of low balance
 Tracking grant expenses for Peltier/Centerville Lakes Feasibility Study, MPCA Planning Grants for

SWC Resilience, and FY2023 WBIF Grant
 Tracking HEI project task orders
 Handled HR/Benefit issues with departing employees and two new employees
 Provided benefits materials and conducted on boarding with two new employees
 Provide minute templates to TimeSavers for meetings. Reviewed and edited regular Board minutes.

Provided workshop minutes
 Monitor District financial accounts, US Bank and 4M
 Provide requested information to Board members and Administrator as needed
 Assisted Board and Staff as needed
 Worked with Terrence and Anna to clear a file cabinet from area where new cubicles will be placed
 Scheduled carpet cleaning for office open space after removal of file cabinets
 Provide information, assembled and distributed board packets for regular meetings and workshops,

post regular meeting agenda packet on website, provided notice to web server
 Attended board meetings, board workshops and staff meetings
 Placed orders for supplies as needed
 Maintain Laserfiche filing system and scanned documents District receives into Laserfiche
 Organized resumes received for 1 job announcements, redacted resumes for interview team review,

provided selected candidate resume to teams, scheduled interviews for candidates selected by
interview team.

 Finalized notices and postcards for a public info meeting and public hearing. Published in multiple
publications, website, mailing to governmental agencies, posted at office.

 Participate in website meeting with Plaudit Design

208



ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION
3. May Calendar

209



MEMORANDUM

* remotely=by alternative means (teleconference or video teleconference) from remote locations

Rice Creek Watershed District

Date: April 17, 2023
To: RCWD Board of Managers
From: Theresa Stasica, Office Manager
Subject: May Calendar

Wednesday, May 3, 5:30 p.m. Citizen Advisory Committee Meeting,
Board Liaison Manager Bradley
RCWD District Conference Room and remotely*

Monday, May 8, 1 p.m. Board Workshop
RCWD District Conference Room and remotely*

Wednesday, May 10, 9 a.m. Regular Board of Managers Meeting
at Shoreview City Hall Council Chambers and remotely*

Wednesday, May 24, 9 a.m. Regular Board of Managers Meeting
at Shoreview City Hall Council Chambers and remotely*

Monday, May 29 Memorial Day Holiday, Office Closed

Deadline for submission of per diem claims is May 11, 2023

210




